CASTROVILLE P.O. BOX 1065
COMMUNITY OFFICE: 11499 GEIL STREET

CASTROVILLE, CA 95012

SERVICES DISTRICT FAX (831) 633-3103

24-HOUR TELEPHONE: (831) 633-2560

President - Cosme Padilla General Manager - Eric Tynan
Vice President — Ron Stefani Board Secretary — Lidia Santos
Director — Glenn Oania

Director —James R, Cochran Website: CastrovilleCSD.org

Director — Greg MacMillan

AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
TUESDAY, JUNE 20, 2023 - 4:30 P.M.
DISTRICT BOAB_D ROOM — 11499 GEIL STREET

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if special assistance is needed to participate in
the Board meeting, please contact Lidia Santos, Board Secretary during regular business hours at (831)
633-2560. Notification received 48 hours before the meeting will enable the District to make reasonable
accommodations.

1.

CALL MEETING TO ORDER

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

ADDITIONS OR CORRECTIONS TO THE AGENDA

PUBLIC COMMENTS — (Limited to three minutes per speaker within the jurisdiction of items not on the

agenda. Public will have the opportunity to ask questions or make statements as the Board addresses each
agenda item.)

CONSENT CALENDAR:

Approve the Budget & Personnel Committee Meeting, May 9, 2023 — motion item

2. Approve the Draft Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting, May 16, 2023 - motion item

1.

CORRESPONDENCE:

None




AGENDA, Page 2
June 20, 2023
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

1.

2022 Annual Water Quality Report available and posted at the following URL:
www.CastrovilleCSD.org/files/13871597 1. pdf

PRESENTATION:

1.

Monterey One Water proposed sewer billing change; community presentation and feedback — Mike
McCullough, Director of External Affairs

2. California CLASS on investment opportunities for Castroville CSD —~ Bob Shull with Public Trust
Advisors
NEW BUSINESS:

1. Approve “Castroville CSD Investment and Deposit Policy" for fiscal year 2022/2023 and 2023/2024
- motion item

2. Consider approving audit proposal with Fechter & Company Certified Public Accountants for thee
years of audit services: 2024, 2025 & 2026 — motion item

3. Consider approving MNS Engineers proposals for Professional Engineering Services - Washington
Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Regulatory Permitting Support ($19,622) and Washington Sewer Trunk
Line Bypass Right-of-Way Acquisition ($81,610) total $101,232 ~ motion item

4. Consider approving MNS Engineers proposal for Professional Engineering Services-Moss Landing
Wastewater System Rehabilitation Project Amendment Request No. 2 ($59,014) — motion item

5. Consider approving Pedestrian Overpass Maintenance “|.andscape” Agreement with Department
of Transportation Referred to as “State”, placed within State Highway right of way on State Route
156 as per Exhibit A — motion item

6. State Water Resources Control Board, Order WQ 2022-0103-DWQ, Statewide Waste Discharge
Requirements, General Order for Sanitary Sewer Systems — Eric Tynan, General Manager

7. Consider approving the Castroville CSD's Water Shortage Contingency Plan — motion item

8. Approve attendance of Castroville CSD Board of Directors and General Manager to the CSDA
Annual Conference & Exhibitor Showcase, Monterey, August 28-31 — motion item

9. The Board will take action to designate Eric Tynan, General Manager as labor negotiator for all

employees for the District for purpose of (Gov. Code Sec. 54957.6 ) - motion item

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

—h.

. Update on Well levels — Eric Tynan, General Manager

Update on Asset Management and Maintenance Projects (Castroville Water Valves Project,
contractor selected Monterey Peninsula Engineering) — Eric Tynan, General Manager

Update on the State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) projects: (1) Caltrans
Merritt Street Beautification Project, (2) Pedestrian Bridge Enhancement/improvement Project, (3)
Castroville Boulevard Roundabout Project — Eric Tynan, General Manager

Update on status of grants/projects for Moss Landing-Sewer Zone 3 (Professional Engineering
Services for Moss Landing Wastewater System Rehabilitation Project) land acquisition for Lift
Station 1, Castroville-Sewer Zone 1 (Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass), Castroville-Water
Zone 1 (Emergency Deep Aquifer Supply and Storage Tank Project, Well No. 6) for system
upgrades and improvements, DeSalter at Well Three and Castroville Landmark Sign at
Highway 183 - Eric Tynan, General Manager



AGENDA, Page 3
June 20, 2023
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

9. Resolution No. 23-04 Adopting the District Budget for FY 2023/2024 for Water (Castroville Zone 1),
Sewer and Governmental (Castroville Zone 1), Sewer and Governmental (Moro Cojo, NMCHS,
Monte Del Lago Mobile Park Zone 2} and Sewer (Moss Landing Zone 3) and CIP — motion item

e Recommendation of the Budget & Personnel Committee (Directors: Stefani and
MacMillan) to consider along with the annual income and operating budget for fiscal
year 2023/2024;

~ Extended recreational services with North County Recreation & Park District,

» Operation Department move up to the next Wage Step Program (varies from
(3%-3.3%) percent salary increases. Effective July 13, 2023.

» Administration Department move up to the next Wage Step Program 3% percent

salary increase. Effective July 13, 2023,

Capital Improvement Projects

Y

Closed Session:

1. Conference with Real Property Negotiations (Govt. Code Sec. 54956.8)
Property: located at intersection of Castroville Blvd., Castroville bike path and Highway 156
Agency Negotiations: Negotiator Eric Tynan, General Manager CCSD

Negotiating Parties: CCSD and Property owner Mitchell, Wylie W. et al., agent Greg
Findley
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms

2. Pursuant to Government Code Section. 54957, Public Employee Performance Evaluation, Title:
General Manager

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION ITEM: (if applicable):

The board will reconvene into open session prior to adjournment and shall announce any
action taken during the closed session.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMUNICATION: When needed, this time is reserved for the Board of

Directors to communicate activity, educational classes, and/or Committee reports.

1. Update on Monterey One Water board meeting — Ron Stefani, Director and Eric Tynan, General
Manager

2. Update on the Salinas Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency — Ron Stefani, Director

3. Update on other meetings/educational classes attended by Castroville CSD Directors

GENERAL OPERATIONS:

1. General Manager's Report - Compliance Update, Current Projects Update, Seminars Update,
Staff Update, Suggestive Projects Discussions
2. Operation’s Report
a) Water — Pumpage & Usage Update, Water Testing Update, Current Installation
b) Status Update, Current Contractor Work Update, Maintenance/Repair Update,
Customer Service Update, Safety Issues
c) Sewer & Storm Drain - Jetting, Current Installation Status Update, Current Contractor Work
Update, Maintenance/Repair Update, Customer Service
Update, Safety Issues




AGENDA, Page 4
June 20, 2023
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

3. Customer/Billing Reports — A/R Update, Water Sales, Water Usage
4. Financial Reports — Treasures Report-L.A.l.F., Quarterly Financial Statements**Internal
Report*™* and Administration Update

CHECK REGISTER - Receive and file the Check Register for the month of May 2023 — motion item
ITEMS FOR NEXT MONTHS AGENDA: Tuesday, July 18, 2023 at 4:30 p.m.

CLOSE:
Adjournment to the next regular scheduled Board Meeting — motion item

All public records relating to an agenda item on this agenda are available for public inspection at the time the
record is distributed to all, or a majority of all, members of the Board. Such records shall be available at the
District office located at 11499 Geil Street, Castroville, California.

Certification of Posting
I certify that on June 16, 2023, | posted a copy of the foregoing agenda near the regular meeting
place of the Board of Directors of the Castroville Community Services District, said time being at least
72 hours in advance of the meeting of the Board of Directors (Government Code Section 54954.2).
Executed at Castroville, California, on June 16, 2023.

Lt

Lidia Santos, Board Secretary




BUDGET & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
May 9, 2023

The Budget & Personnel Committee meeting was held in the District board room,

Director Ron Stefani called the meeting to order at 10:05 a.m.

ROLL CALL:
Directors Present: Committee members: Ron Stefani and Greg MacMillan

Absent:

Staff Present: General Manager Eric Tynan and Office Manager Lidia Sanios

Guest:

PUBLIC COMMENTS

None

Review of FY 2023/2024 Proposed Budget — General Manager Eric Tynan presented the preliminary
budgets for Water (Castroville —~Zone1), Sewer and Governmental (Castroville - Zone1), Sewer and
Governmental (Moro Cojo, NMCHS, & Monte Del Lago Mobile Park —Zone 2), and Sewer (Moss
Landing - Zone 3}, which were all reviewed by the Budget Committee.

Recommendations for FY 2023/2024 Budget —~ The Budget Committee will be updating the Board at
the regularly scheduled board meeting on May 16, 2023 on the budgets reviewed and their
recommendations. All budget items were reviewed and discussed at this meeting and
recommended changes made. Furthermore, there is no water rate increase as the 5 year water rate
increase that was approved ended fiscal year 2020/2021. Castroville Zone 1-Sewer currently reflects
$100,000 of ad valorem property taxes to be transferred out to Castroville Zone1-Governmental in
order to fund extended recreational services ($100,000) for 2023-24. Ad valorem funds will need to
be transferred out in this manner as done in the past to fund extended recreational services. Funding
to be used for capital improvement projects (Sports Complex Improvements and Rehabilitation
Project) is yet to be determined and to be discussed further at the regularly scheduled board meeting
on May 16, 2023.The transfer out of funds was not done for several years since there were sufficient
funds in the Castroville Zone 1-Govermental. Castroville Zone 1-Governmental no longer has
sufficient monies in the fund to pay for extended recreational services, therefore ad valorem property
tax monies will need to be applied to the Castroville Zone 1-Governmental as done in the 2022/2023
budget and in the past. NCRPD Finance & Administration Director Alex Lopez had submitted the
request for extended recreational services, which is included with this board packet and can be
viewed on page 14. For fiscal year 2023/2024 NCRPD in addition to requesting the $100,000 for
extended recreational services, they are also asking for $322,000 for the Sports Complex
Improvement and Rehabilitation project as the project came in substantially higher than anticipated
at $550,000. NCRPD is asking Castroville CSD to fund the difference for this CIP totaling $322,000.
The Budget & Personnel Committee will provide their recommendation to the full Board at the May
16, 2023 board meeting. This is only a discussion at this time and no action has been taken.
Extended Recreational Services expense is now reflecting $100,000. Changes were also made to
Employees Wages, FICA and PERS Retirement Employer Contributions budget line items for Water,
Sewer Zone 1, 2, and 3 to reflect a 3% not 5% increase. The cost of insurance coverage for PERS
Platinum is currently $17,338.75 monthly for all employees, which covers 90/10 for employees with
CalPERS from until December 2023 and expected to increase for January 2024 to June 2024 fiscal
year. The new rates for 2024 will not be disclosed until August of 2023. PERS Choice was
dissolved as of December 2021. Director Ron Stefani stated that having good coverage is very
important. The budget will be discussed further at the regular scheduled board meeting. Sewer and
Governmental {(Moro Cojo, NMCHS & Monte De Lago Mobile Park-Zone 2 will have no sewer rate
increases as the last of the 5 year approved rate increase was for fiscal year 2020/2021 per
Ordinance No. 67.

i



BUDGET & PERSONNEL COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
May 9, 2023
Page 2

3. Personnel-Staff Wage increase — The Budget & Personnel Committee reviewed the Wage Step
Program that was approved by the Board at the October 2018 board meeting for all hourly staff
positions, which can be viewed on pages 43 of this board packet. Also, enclosed was a
memorandum to the Board from General Manager Eric Tynan with option 1, 3% hourly rate increase
for employees and option 2, 5% hourly rate increase for employees. The consumer price index for all
items as of March 2023 reflect 5%. The General Manager position is salary and the most recent
three year contract was executed July 1, 2021.

4. Recommendations for Staff Wage Increase- General Manager Eric Tynan informed the Budget &
Personnel Committee that the preliminary budgets include a 5% hourly wage increase for employee,
pending Board approval. He recommended all staff receive a 5% hourly wage increase. Per Director
Ron Stefani, employee health care monthly premiums continue to rise annually and Castroville CSD
pays 100% of the monthly heaith premium for employees and dependents, which is a valuable
benefit. For this reason Directors Stefani and MacMillan recommend option 1 for all employees, a
3% hourly rate increase. The Budget & Personnel Committee will be making recommendations to the
Board at the regularly scheduled board meeting on May 16, 2023, which will only be a discussion
item.

5. Adjournment

CLOSE:

Meeting adjourned at 11:34 a.m.

Respectfully submitted by, Approved by,
Lidia Santos Cosme Padilla
Secretary to the Board President



1.

THE OFFICIAL MINUTES OF THE REGULAR BOARD MEETING OF
CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
May 16, 2023

President Cosme Padilla called the meeting to order at 4:33 p.m.

ROLL CALL:

Directors Present: President Cosme Padilla, Vice President Ron Stefani, Director James Cochran and
Director Greg MacMillan

Absent: Director Glenn Qania (arrived at 4:46 p.m.)

General Manager: Eric Tynan

Secretary to the Board: Lidia Santos

Staff Present:

Guest: North County Recreation & Park District General Manager Alex Lopez as President Grant
Leonard

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

The pledge of allegiance was led by Office Manager Lidia Santos at the request of President Cosme
Padilla.

A typographical correction was made to page 109 of the board packet, (checklist on Excel ) for check
1771, dated 4/20/2023. The payee should reflect Greg MacMillan.

PUBLIC COMMENTS
None
CONSENT CALENDAR

A motion was made by Ron Stefani and seconded by James Cochran to approve the minutes of the
April 18, 2023 Regularly Scheduled Board Meeting. The motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: Oania
Consent Calendar accepted as presented
CORRESPONDENCE:

1. Memorandum from Monterey One Water to Castroville CSD regarding Memorandum of
Understanding for Conducting Annual FOG Education Program.

2. Memorandum from General Manager Eric Tyan to Castroville CSD Board of Directors addressing the
General Manager’s annual performance evaluation and contract in June 2023.

Correspondence Calendar accepted as presented
INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

1. Washington Post - El Niho is looming. Here’s what that means for weather and the world

2. California Department of Water Resources — Current Reservoir Conditions as of May 12 2023

3. Terra Verde Energy — On April 28, the California Air Resources Board formally adopted the Advanced
Clean Fleets Regulations which requires a swift shift away from conventional vehicles to Zero-
Emission Vehicles for state and local fleets (including public water agencies) for medium- and heavy-
duty fleet vehicles string in 2024.

Informational items accepted as presented Al 7



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
May 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
Page 2

PRESENTATIONS:

1

. None

NEW BUSINESS:

1.

Request for extension of services outside of agency’s jurisdictional boundaries at angle/corner of
Struve Road in Moss Landing, APN: 413-061-042-000, APN: 413-012-014-000 and APN: 413-022-
006-000 in order to relocate a sewer lift station — General Manager Eric Tynan reported to the Board
that this request needs to be made for the extensions of services outside of Castroville CSD's
boundaries to install a new sewer lift station and remove the existing lift station. The request to be
submitted to LAFCO can be viewed on page 21 of this board packet. This project is part of the Moss
Landing Wastewater Rehabilitation Project. A motion is made by Ron Stefani and seconded by Greg
MacMillan to have General Manager Eric Tynan move forward with the request for extension of
services outside of agency’s jurisdictional boundaries at angle/corner of Struve Road in Moss
Landing, APN: 413-061-042-000, APN: 413-012-014-000 and APN: 413-022 in order to install a new
sewer lift station. The motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 4 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors;
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 1 Directors: Qania

2. North County Recreation and Park District request for funding, “Extended Recreation Services” for

fiscal year 2023/2024 — General Manager Eric Tynan informed the Board that North County
Recreation & Park District (NCRPD) has submitted their request for Extended Recreational Services
and Capital Improvement projects for fiscal year 2023/2024, which can be viewed on page 22 of this
board packet. This request was also previously reviewed by the Budget & Personnel Commitiee at
the May 9, 2023 Budget & Personnel Committee meeting. NCRPD General Manager Alex Lopez
stated that he respectfully asks for Capital Improvement funds for their Sports Complex
Improvements and Rehabilitation project in the amount of $$322,000, in addition to the Extended
Recreation Services funding of $100,000. The project went out to bid using Gordian’s JOC
Procurement process and unfortunately, the project came in higher than anticipated at $550,000.
NCRPD is asking CCSD to fund the difference totaling $322,000. The artificial turf needs to be
replaced and the current artificial turf is over 12 years old. It has a life expectancy of 8-10 years and
requires replacement to ensure proper performance and safety. Director James Cochran asked if
NCRPD has applied for any other source of funding, such as grants, corporate sponsors or have
they spoken to Supervisor Church to see what other options may be available as it is a lot of money
NCRPD is asking of Castroville CSD. NCRPD General Manager Alex Lopez stated he has only
asked Castroville CSD for this funding and has not pursued any other funding sources at this time.
NCRPD President Grant Leonard stated that the Sports Complex Improvements and Rehabilitation
project came in way over budget, but they still want to have a good quality park as it does get a lot
of use by the community. Vice President Ron Stefani stated that the Castroville CSD has been
getting a tremendous windfall of funds for property taxes. Fiscal year 2023/2024 for Sewer Zone 1,
the District is estimating to bank $346,000 in property tax revenues and thinks the Castroville CSD
can afford to fund this project, which is important to the community. He will discuss it further under
the next agenda item listed below for Preliminary 20213/24 Operating Budgets for Sewer Zone 1.
Director Glenn QOania arrives at 4:45 p.m. Per President Cosme Padilla, Castroville CSD has
been very supportive of the NCRPD but should also consider reaching out to big sponsors from the
community to help fund this project too. President Cosme Padilla also stated that Directors Stefani
and MacMillan were on this year's Budget & Personnel Committee and the Board should rely on
their recommendations. ~nQ



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
May 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
Page 3

3. Preliminary 2023/24 Operating Budgets for Water (Castroville Zone 1), Sewer and Governmental
(Castroville Zone 1),Sewer and Governmental (Moro Cojo, NMCHS, & Monte Del Lago Mobile Home
Park Zone 2) and Sewer (Moss Landing Zone 3) — General Manager Eric Tynan and the Board
reviewed and discussed all budget items for the different funds. However, the Budget & Personnel
Committee: Directors Stefani and MacMillan had met on May 9, 2023 with the General Manager and
discussed and reviewed the budgets and moving up staff to the next wage step increase. For the
Operations Department wage increase (varies between 3%-3.3% for each position) per the Wage
Step Program approved by the Board, October 2018. The Budget & Personnel Committee also
discussed a 3% staff wage increase for the Administration Department and for the District to remain
with PERS Platinum in 2024 for all employees monthly health care coverage. The Budget &
Personnel Committee also discussed with the Board to consider approving the funding to the
NCRPD $100,000 for Extended Recreation Services and $322,000 for Capital Improvement funds
for their Sports Complex Improvement and Rehabilitation project. General Manager Eric Tynan
reminded the Board that Castroville CSD has a lot of big projects coming up, such as the deep well
(Well #6). CIP for this project is being projected at $1.4 million but may easily come in at $1.8 million
and does not include treatment if it is needed. The District is looking for grants to fund these projects:
Moss Landing Rehabilitation Project $7.5 million, Washington Street Sewer Bypass Project $3.5
million and Well Site 4 with a new tank $8 million. However, grants funds are not secured and
Castroville CSD will need to have funds available for these projects. General Manager Eric Tyan
reviewed all the budgets along with capital improvements projects (CIP) slated for 2023/2024 and
projected up until 2027. Vice President Ron Stefani asked the Board to review the Zone 1 Sewer &
Storm Drain CIP on page 30, specifically operating revenues acquired for property taxes, which has
gone up every year. When Castroville CSD first acquired these services, property taxes received
were only about $300,000 and it has now gained about $600,000 in revenue. The Sewer Zone 1 has
used around $300,00 to fund sewer operations in the past. This CIP report lays out the anticipated
total operating expenses and Capital Improvement Projects for each year and at the end it still leaves
a surplus of funds due to the increase in property values. Also, when you look at funding a
government agency on property taxes, if you don’t need or use those property taxes, you are
supposed to give them back. The State reviews property taxes received and when they see reserved
property taxes, the State may shift these property taxes away from local governments and take it up
to the State as the State had done in the past when it was in the hole. This year, the State is
projected to be $32 billion in the hole and there is a possibility this can happen again. The District
should earmark all this property tax revenue for the community. Furthermore, the whole focus since
he has been on the Castroville CSD has been water, sewer and utilities but the District has not been
that community services district yet, which it needs to be. Per General Manager Eric Tynan he is
aware that the NCRPD is not funded properly. NCRPD does fantastic work that is necessary for this
community. Years back when NCRPD was in danger of cutting back on programs, Castroville CSD
Board of Directors committed to $100k annually to fund Extended Recreational Services and
consider capital improvement projects, but did not envision a request for half a million dollars. In
addition, the Sewer Master Plan show a lot of flat spots in Castroville that need to be upsized. Also,
the District has been getting a lot of voids; all of a sudden where the road is giving way and you have
a little whole at the top, requiring emergency repairs. President Cosme Padiila stated if there is any
way Castroville CSD can legally help out the community through the NCRPD, it should as Castroville
CSD is a community services district but NCRPD should also look at sponsors. This request needs to
be looked at more deeply. Currently, the District does have a lot of CIP projects, applying for grants
to fund some of these projects and also has a nice reserve that can quickly go up in smoke with a big
project or emergency. A decision on the funding amount allocated for NCRPD will be made at next
month's board meeting. Director Glenn Oania suggested, in his opinion Castroville allocate $200k to
NCRPD for fiscal year 2023/2024. NCRPD General Manager Alex Lopez stated that he was very
appreciative of the funding NCRPD has received from Castroville CSD as it is very helpful to them
and thanks the Board for their consideration as he is aware they are asking for a big amount.
President Grant Leonard stated that they will review their funding request again and will revise their
proposal and submit it for the June 20, 2023 board meeting. Per the Board, changes will be made to
the draft preliminary 2023/24 Operating Budgets to reflect the recommendations made to the affected
accounts at the June 20, 2023 board meeting. Draft budgets and data can be viewed on pages 23-46 5

19



1.

Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
May 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
Page 4

of this board packet (note some of the new recommendations discussed at this meeting are not yet
reflected in these budgets ) Final adoption of the budgets will not be made until the June 20, 2023
regularly scheduled board meeting.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS:

Update on Well levels — General Manager Eric Tynan reported to the Board that the well levels report
can be viewed on page 47 of this board packet. Well levels have taken a nose dive since the farmers
have started pumping. As mentioned last month, even though we have had all this rain and the well
levels have gone up during winter time, they are nowhere near where they were a few years ago. He will
continue working on considering alternate well sites, the desalter and the pipeline. The District continues
to monitor the chloride levels of all the wells. Well #3 is not pumping and the motor is not hooked up.
The static level is dropping for Well #3. A desalter is being considered for Well #3.

Update on Asset Management and Maintenance Projects (Castroville Water Valves Replacement
Project and Maggiora Bros. Drilling Inc. for the Replacement of Well #4 Pump) - General Manager Eric
Tynan reminded the Board as mentioned at last month’s board meeting that Monterey Peninsula
Engineering (MPE) was awarded the project, not to exceed $121,000 for the Castroville Water Valves
Replacement Project. He has met with an MPE representative for a preconstruction meeting of this
project. MPE plans to start this project next month and it should be completed by no later than June 30,
2023. He believes MPE is currently busy working on the Pajaro levy.

Update on the State of California Department of Transportation (Caltrans} projects: (1) Caltrans Merritt
Street Beautification Project, (2) Pedestrian Bridge Enhancement/Improvement Project, (3) Castroville
Boulevard Roundabout Project— General Manager Eric Tynan reported that for project (1) Caltrans
emailed maintenance agreements today for projects 1 and 2 that they want signed by Castroville CSD.
He is reviewing these agreements and making some revisions as the maintenance of landscaping is
included and should be omitted. The agreement should only say what Castroville CSD will be doing,
which is provide maintenance of lighting and graffiti abatement. NCRPD will be taking care of
landscaping and this should be in their agreement with Caltrans that they received and need to sign.
The agreements will be presented to the Board at next month’s board meeting for Board approval. They
want the District to take care of the solar lighted bollards next to the Castroville sign. As mentioned at a
previous board meeting, a Cooperation Agreement was signed and Caltrans will raise the valves and
manholes at their cost. Caltrans will also be upgrading the lighting to a historical look. There might also
be some hydrants moved at their cost, which is great for the District. Project (2) Caltrans also wants a
maintenance agreement signed for the this project. Castroville CSD will take care of the solar lighting
on the pedestrian bridge and graffiti abatement. For this project, Caltrans is planning to put a little
parklet on either side of the pedestrian overpass. NCRPD will be taking the responsibility for the
landscaping and the parklet, which is the agreement they will sign with Calirans. General Manager (3)
General Manager Eric Tynan stated as mentioned previously, Caltrans will cover the work for the
Castroville Boulevard Roundabout Project 100% and CCSD 0% because of California S & HC 703.
This project will start in 2028.

. Update on status of grants for Moss LLanding-Sewer Zone 3, Castroville-Sewer Zone 1 and Castroville-

Water Zone 1 for system upgrades and improvements — Moss Landing Sewer (Gantt Chart can be
viewed on page 48 of this board packet): Per General Manager Eric Tynan, as mentioned [ast month,
CEQA is complete. The Coastal Development Permit application has been submitted to California
Coastal Commission and we are waiting to receive feedback on permit application (30-day response
timeframe). Per the Gantt Chart, the Coastal Development Permit applications should be completed by
June 20, 2023, Also discussed prior, General Manager Eric Tynan reported to the Board that the pipeline
under the bridge is still under the mitigated negative declaration and without the bike bridge being built
by the County, Castroville CSD will have to do it on their own and build under the existing structure,
which is right over the Elkhorn Slough, Marine Sanctuary and Harbor. General Manager Eric Tynan will
pursue LAFCO of approval of an out-of-agency service extension and minor sphere of influence [ 0



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
May 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
Page 5

amendment for wastewater services (CEQA: categorical exemption). MNS is finishing up the 60%
design and the environmental is underway. MNS is to prepare a construction application following the
60% completion. Ortega (FINEPRO, LLC (seller) approved the sale for the easement for $10,000 in
Moss Landing and the District is still working on finalizing the sale of the easement pending LAFCO
approval, which is required before acquiring the property. In addition, the Coastal Commission is
requiring an arborist to analyze the trees. MNS has submitted a proposal for Native monitoring for MMRP
to be done by the Rumsen Ohlone Tribe, cost estimate $112,400 for the Moss Landing Wastewater
Rehabilitation Project. General Manager Eric Tynan is still reviewing this cost estimate and considering
other options.

The Washington Bypass (Gantt Chart can be viewed on page 49 of this board packet): Per General
Manager Eric Tynan, as mentioned last month, CEQA |s complete. 60% detailed design of this project
is complete. The Coastal Development Permit application is in progress and is pending the land owner
authorization. Castroville CSD still needs easement agreements and/or signed authorization from
overlying landowners. Project permitting for jurisdictional permitting, Caltrans encroachment permit and
County encroachment permit contracts are still pending. As previously mentioned, Castroville CSD
applied for the $3.5 million grant for this project and the State is saying Castroville CSD is good to go for
this grant once the environmental review is completed. Castroville CSD approved the environmental
proposal from MNS Engineers for this project, which is complete. MNS to submit the funding application
for the next phase, spring 2023. The District has applied for a grant for finishing the design and
construction, California Housing Community Development, Infill Infrastructure Grant. In addition, State
Water Resources Control Board, SRF set aside for small disadvantaged communities, “The Small
Community Clean Water Waste Water Funding Program. The proposal for Professional Engineering and
Constructions Management Services-Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Final Design and
Construction (not to exceed $498,141} is contingent on award of grant to Castroville CSD.

Emergency Deep Aquifer Supply and Storage Tank (Gantt Chart can be viewed on page 50 of
this board packet): Per General Manager Eric Tynan as mentioned last month, the 30% design has
been completed as of May 2022. The 60% design has been completed on the application for the
construction, The District is still working on getting grant funds for the construction of the deep well and
CEQA is complete. MNS to prepare a Future Grant Application if SCDR is a “no go”. MNS also submitted
a grant application on behalf of Castroville CSD for the SCDR grant. However, this grant is first come
first serve and there are 55 applicants ahead of CCSD. Still, partial funding is a possibility.

Desalter at Well Three: Per General Manager Eric Tynan, as mentioned {ast month he is recommending
to investigate the condition of well casing and perforations to evaluate use as brackish water supply for
RO treatment and consider an appropriate response. There are alternatives to consider to mitigate the
seawater intrusion of Well #3 by having the well investigated using a video.

The Overhead Sign at Highway 183: Board President Cosme Padilla stated he overheard an MNS
engineer stating that the deadline for this project was June 30, 2023 and is concerned the deadline will
not be met and asked the GM to explain. Per General Manager Eric Tynan it is supposed to be done by
June 30, 2023 but Caltrans could not come to an agreement as to where the poles should be located
but have finally come to a consensus. Jeremy with Signs by Van has assured him he can get the sign
up in one day and will make the deadline. As mentioned previously, the Board approved the Cooperative
Agreement and Maintenance Agreement with Caltrans for the Overhead Sign in October 2022, The State
has also requested a traffic control plan and a storm water control plan which was prepared by MNS
Engineers and sent to the state. MNS will be handling the administration for this project. Resolution
No.2022-14, Engaging Signs By Van for the Design, Fabrication, and Installation of the Castroville
Landmark Sign was approved. MNS to continue working with Signs By Van and draft a Project
Management Professional (PMP), contract, encroachment permit. Castroville CSD received a check
from Caltrans in the amount of $127,955.28 February 2, 2023. The original placement of the post, will
remain in the same spot as long as Castroville CSD Engineers say it is safe. Previously, Caltrans was
telling Signs By Van where to put them and the locations that they want has a lot of underground utilities.

11



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
May 16, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
Page 6

Current grants awarded are the Clean Water Small Communities Planning Grant ($500,000) with State
Waterboards for administration, preliminary engineering report, plans and specs for sewer in Moss
Landing, project assigned to MNS Engineers. The IRWM Implementation Grant ($395,000) is with DWR
for the Deep Well (Well #8) and the use will be specified in the DWR/MCRWA agreement. The DAC
Involvement Programs amount $61,807 with DWR is for the design of the Washington Sewer Bypass for
Castroville sewer is also assigned to MNS Engineers. Current funding efforts: Moss Landing sewer
system improvements, Castroville emergency well replacement, Castroville water supply improvements
and Castroville wastewater improvements,

Closed Session: Board President Cosme Padilla announced the Board was going into closed
session The Board entered closed session at 5:56 p.m.

Conference with Real Property Negotiations (Govt. Code Sec. 54956.8)
Property: located at intersection of Castroville Blvd., Castroville bike path and Highway 156
Agency Negotiations: Negotiator Eric Tynan, General Manager CCSD
Negotiating Parties: CCSD and Property owner Mitchell, Wylie W. et al., agent Greg Findley
Under Negotiation: Price and Terms

ANNOUNCEMENT OF CLOSED SESSION ITEM: (if applicable):

The board will reconvene into open session prior to adjournment and shall announce any action
taken during the closed session. The Board reconvened into open session at 6.06 p.m.
There was no action taken. The General Manager was directed to obtain three quotes for the
services of property appraiser.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS COMMUNICATION: When needed, this time is reserved for the Board of
Directors to communicate activity, educational classes, and/or Committee reports.

1. Update on Monterey One Water (M1W) board meeting — Director Ron Stefani stated that MIW is on
the third year of their 5 year rate increase. Unfortunately, it appears they will need to go up for another
rate increase. They big property owners of Monterey are against this rate increases. MIW is also
reviewing employees pay rates.

2. Update on Salinas Valley Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (SVBGSA) meeting — Director Ron
Stefani stated that the SVBGSA is working on their budgets. They are also looking at increasing their
rates. Rates at $2.97 per connection and will go up to $12 a year per connection.

3. Update on meetings or educational classes attended by the Directors — President Cosme Padilla
announced that he, along with Directors Ron Stefani and Greg MacMillan as well as General Manger
Eric Tynan attended the Spring ACWA Conference & Exhibition Show in Monterey earlier this month.
They all found it very informative and each attended sessions that they found beneficial. They all
agreed that it was a great networking opportunity as well.

GENERAL OPERATIONS

1. General Manager's Report — Compliance update, current projects update, meetings/seminars
update, staff update, suggestive projects discussions
2.  Operation’s Report
a) Water —~ Pumpage & Usage Update, Water Testing Update, Current Installation
b) Water -Status Update, Current Contractor Work Update, Maintenance/Repair Update,
Customer Service Update, Safety Issue
¢) Sewer & Storm Drain - Jetting, Current Installation Status Update, Current Contractor Work
Update, Maintenance/Repair Update, Customer Service Update, Safety Issues

10

I



Minutes of the Castroville Community Services District
May 186, 2023 Regular Board Meeting
Page 7

ch Customer /Billing Reports — Water Sales, Water Usage, A/R Update, Customer Service Update
4. Financial Reports — Treasures L.A.l.F. Report, Internal Report, Administration Update

General Operations Reports were accepted as presented

CHECK LIST — April 2023. A motion was made by Glenn Oania and seconded by Greg MacMillan to pay
all bills presented. The motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 5 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, Oania and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 0 Directors:

There being no further business, a motion was made by Glenn Oania and seconded by Ron Stefani to
adjourn to the next scheduled Board meeting; the motion carried by the following roll call votes:

AYES: 5 Directors: MacMillan, Stefani, Cochran, Oania, and Padilla
NOES: 0 Directors:
ABSENT/NOT

PARTICIPATING: 0 Directors:

The meeting adjourned at 6:50 p.m. until the next scheduled meeting

i:lespectfully submitted by, Approved by,
Lidia Santos Cosme Padilla
Secretary to the Board President

I.-i.



Apyond u3iom BunpuLp D3y Ingo
UCHOWIO W Jusiiodun  FIDA|U 1T FLUDUDY
400A LM BI00U £} S0 D OYS 253

Eaumgy
waupmdy pus FpuopuTy  NOLANALLY

‘09GE-EE9
{1c8) awp|_ sojunbasg ‘umqg DpuIlLD
o) b uANBjo Yo oY ¢ oEIZRPD)
~faqaq 2p onbo ns 24qos ajuoisodwi
AN ugISDWID JU1 BUBIILED JWJOJUI DIE]

wd p 03 Wwo g Aoprig-Avpuow
‘osc2-ee9 (1£8) 30 3 spumis.apun
oym 2uoawos Y ¥oads Jo T NosUDL]
JaloaM  Bupjuiip  JnoA  Inoqn  uonmw
-Joju) jupltodwt surouod 3Jodas snyy

‘2202
g Aquazag - | Awonuop jo poraad ay3
+40) BulsonUOW JNo Jo SYNSAL FYT SMOYS
odas sy suoniombay peaspad pun
2106 AQ p2ainbad SO SIUININASUD AuD
Jof Ayjonb s:om Bupuidp ayl 1531 I

1oday
Aljenp J81epn |BNUUY

1214351 S3DINIBS
Ajunwiwo) 3jiaclised

] 6u0°psoajaoy sTOZND
il -££9 (1£8) 4 uoud) a3 sabounyy [oaauag I
1 1204000
gl W04 21066 VD

My uo pp?
._uﬂ.&u._ hﬂ ua Auo puaiio oy nok ayaur am B

6uo"qsoayrouse) ausqam, I

owa g0 0962 B
‘juodas siyy uo suopsand  Aup P
FMONSTY LIRS |39 B
PIT 40 PyD3g) 20130 L2RNS)g Ay 49 B
OEty 40 Jiuow youa Jo L Pyl
‘sbujiaawu puoog pajnpayds B

‘poajaoboda mammy s :ds sy 10 a0 aupiop J230Ay BunjuLig
2J06 2y} wory qojean 6t aunsodxa ITUILNL 0) KDy UDI
noA sdays pun ‘spoyjaw Buiisay ‘sayom Buppuup ui vo
UOHDUIIOINT "PRIFAL J30m JnoA A0y 0y Ysim Ao nok "J2inm
oA u poa) 4ngp pauwsacum auo nod §T spod Buuziom
5o yans “asodund [0131j3Uaq JIYIOUD JOJ {1 IS PUD JFIDM
m.w.,ﬁ.: A1 43107 o) ysim Ame nok “os op nod T ~Bunjoes o

UIIP 104 Jaam BUsn JU0saq SAINUI 2 D} SPUBIPS OF Yo
doy unol buysn)y Aq aunsodxa poay Joj |oijuajod 2y} 2zHUMIL
uo3 noA 'sanoy [uUanas Jgay Buipis uaaq soy Jajom Jnod
wRym u-:ﬂ:u“:au Buiqunyd wi pasn sppuBiow Jo Ao
4 044003 Jouund inq Wa3om Bunpup Argonb ybiy Buipiaosd
a0) ayqsuodsau S NS SN AUNWINGY 2f|IAC ST
-Biquingd oY W) SN FIVNAIRE YR PAIBIIOSSD S U0l
PuD Sporualia wot) Apaoaid B Jiom Buuap w poe
u.ppya Bunod puo uawem poubard Jog Apioadss “swaiqos
Y4[DF SNOWDE BERDS UDD PIA| J0 5{3AF] pIIDA3D ‘juasaad T

(16£¢-924-008-1) 2uljioH
aaop Bupjuiug 9489 941 Woa) IGUUDAT a0 SILOUILD|UOT
[1qousne  Saylo  puo  weplodseadisy  AQ wonIegu
Jo Wsu 3yi uassz] of swaw 3owdosdde wo sauepinb
HKIF/¥dF Ssapinoad 2003 Yoy Jrayy wody gajom Bunjuiap
1NOgD 3IAPD Y235 pnoys 3jdosd aFay) SuGIIAU WL} HE

40 Alopnanand 2q uDd sunyur puo 'Aoapys WOs 'SIIPI0EIP
wragsds aunuun J3yio W SQIY/ATH Yom 2jdoad ‘siuoydsuoay
uobuo auobrapun anpy oym suastad “Adorayioways butoburapun

suosuad  pasiuwadwo3

Ul SUTURIDINGT By IqEIRNA 0w 2q Aow 3jdoad Iwog

J0UD3 Ypm suosaad so yons
-n_.!EEH_._ ‘uorppndod _Ed:d.w ayi uoyl Joom Bunuiap 0

HILVAM DNPANNQ
Nj SLNVYNIWVLNOD)

Yoy aijgnd
204 vorpraiead swos Jyi apwosd JETw Joys J210M no_.wu 1]
EJUDUNITIUOT 0} S{| UsIlaRis? osio supouppnfae juau.mdag
WHSAS  ATiEM u._aL G papoad 2240M W FpuDUNID)LE)
U2 40 JUNCWD 34l hwi| oyl suoiopnBas  aqitasaad
(p/oog 2I01G) pJoog [0AIU0D SITN0SIY SHDN BIS YL
PUD YIS HuIIp 01 )05 Bt 13 1Dm dby Joyy JANEUD 0} 33P0 U]
S2431A1120 Bumny
puo ot onpo.d sob puo 10 Jo |neRa 3yl 3 e Buanzao
Qrouniou 2 102 YAYM FIUDUIMTILOD AL IDOIDTY ]

surasds 3rydas puo
*J O T DM W0 | S WDGUN U Dy S SDO wody oo osjo
uo3 puo ‘wonsnposd wisjoaiad pun sassraoud [pusipw
jo sionpoudiq 3ao oy Csonuays Huobuo  3jisojoa
puo anayuds Burpnoun 'siwoumouos [oaiseyI Jwobug ]

FaE |UIpIFFJ pUD %&.OE J3DM
WJ0)S UKEIN ‘aJngnabo 5D yons saounos o Ajanmoa
B wogj el Aow YAym FIpIQIdy pun Fapiatisad ’

“Buntsn) w0 ‘Gumin 'uoipanpaad £06 puo 1o ‘Eabuydsp
JIOMEDM  IFIWOP JO  DRUSHPUI Cjjouf  JDdyom
ULIO}S UBGU wody jnsas Jo Buaansao-Apunjou 3q upa

1Dy} 'FIDITW PUD FL0E 5D 43NS FIUDUILICIL0T Dnobiouy *

.uh\_u_v__! pun ‘suonauado §20 51 [ouninaiibo ‘swaisis
adas ‘siuojd Juzwioaly abomas wouy wos Aow oy
‘BIZEI0G PUD SIFLA 5D YIS SIOMUDING) PIGOIIW

IIPNIMH §1 4090
M 230J2G J310M 234005 Ul juasaud 3q Aow oyl siUowWOLu0)

“AJiAIL20 UDWINY WoL S J0 S{DWILD Jo 2auasaud Ay woay Bunnsay
sanpysqns da yad wo? ‘DL OW FAILIVHPTL SISV IWOS )
'pUD SOUUIW m:_....__._uun-h:_u_u.._:ﬁue sanossip 1) "punoub 3y ybroays
40 PUTY Wi JO BI0LINS Y} JIAO SIADIY DM SY S|M puD
'sbuiads ‘saorsasad nﬂ:om SWoaus 'FayDy ‘suand apapus {13 jom
paHeq pus J2om dog yieq) Jajom Bunulp jo s33an0s )

16449210061 40
anoy 940 Bunjuag ajog s Auaby uoudaiosyd iunmIcaiay
Laid Hiled PRIIga 3 WOD 50319 Yi[ey (B
PUD SIUDUNIDIUOD JNOGD LOLIDULIOJMY 2JOW “HS1J \ioay

D s3asod J240M Yy 44 24COIpUt AlIDSSAIU fou uuaﬂq

wojuas jo @ o ayj suTUUDINDI Fwos Jo
SJUNOWD |{TWS 1503 1D WDJu03 03 pyoadxa 2q Ajgouocsoaa

fow ‘mipm papieq Bupnpu Cwaem Bupjuup gy

NOLLYINYHO4N|

. Buagosd
Ao pun 2B0WDp LS SO 4INE S122)3 Yijoay
JYLO 0F pAUIE S1 pud SUoLBLlUIILeY Ybiy 1D suoumy
Ul JINUDD ISNDI O) UMOWY [DIUNL D §1 YNYM ‘IISID JO
F[2A3] MO| J0 5339} )3 YI[UAY FY4 YNDIERJ O} FONUIJUDD
Anraby uoidajody pDluUIUMOLIMIG S YL JHOM
Buijutap wod) 2messe Gurowad o £1800 Yy ysunbo
sixaj)? yyoay Agssod sonpsso o Buipupistapun
WRLND Y FIANDOQ PITPUDYS UISIT YL AUIEID
JO S[3AD| MB) WIDIUOI FA0P §I MUISID JOJ PJDPUDLE
24045 puD AP} M} 5133w J2I0M Bunjutp Janok M,

‘swia A unigI3| 03
JaM3Is puD FAUKLSD 2uninobo of Ijgoaauna Jsow
PAJIPISUOD §1 2UN0S IYL “UONIPPD LT * UNISTLIUL JALEM
1os &1 4ddns J310m umu. Wl PRiI24ap FIUDURIDLUODD LM
primsasso sauanae Busojjof 2yt 01 AgousmA 150w
PRJIPISUGD 3UR0S Y| (002 JFqwaIRG Ul wasds Q570
YL 40} PAIINPUOI SDM LUBWSTISET JILDM IJIN0S

._nm.q&un_uuﬂ:unu w:u.: :Eu__uza__u:u_uo.*sv‘
2y wol} JIDMm punog _T;El Sjfam 2 wody FAuod
J2)DM 22005 I I oM Jnok jo Ayonb ayy Buunsua
0L PRIINIGOD 200 M FINOFRS JAIOM W00 {2310ud
pup 5520040 JUBLELL JRIDM 43 Iaoudur Aonuiuas ol
FHOWL M 5100113 I} PUDISIIDUN B} NOA [UDM /) J340M
Bunjup jo Ajddns’ sgopusdap pup ayps o ypm nod
spinoJd o 51 [pob tupisues ang Aop Arana nod of Janjap
M $33AIE pup Jaz1om Jo Ayonb 34y snoge nod uuojur
oi paubisap 51 jJodas swy rdeday Auenln Jaop
[owuy §uoad sy nok oy juasaad oy pastapd 20 9

14043y ALITVNT YIALYM
DNDINRQ TYNNNY



uossnzy mpeaeed (vrivn | 609l 6265 il 2202 =t [10:57) Apags
Fopads pani e (v v c gl < 2707 ver el Arpagany
HRTO ARET] IWNIYH £ L L 2252 wer INOLY R
tupeanpenf fviivn | 000t HL2IE =1 Z732 T UK TUOT DRGSR )
o 15odon e woy Bnprasoum YHVYN | ooc 223 a 2202 L furd) e
o SOTEM PIOShOU NESOde0 Ty wod tuzped ] (vsilv N 00 W FerBhe ZIOT T o) won |
Qe 5 SOUHR e U0y Plhﬂu...__l-adr (vt d besit) et @z v {uadd] epponedy
& PUGKLL DUPEH0 unDa AErTer] IV RIVH [ £ 3 Rl o)
RRURAIO03 G Mo FRaNL IGE T L TUONI9180 1D $DUTY ] a3e0 185N OG000)
&_“-ns._ ndueg BUR]  JUMTGITTUGD JO (TINLE D
v

35 ¥ UTim SIUTURLIFUGD 4O U

[C T TC St T a1

UOTRIED S5t Euned PRoasdlf N ) v r ZoT Kg
AOrEIRR S 1tem Gurs0 DKy Y on an ro K Rl RO A
svadap pesme wag Duspey G g L™ iy TI0Z Lef {odd) wntunae) ey
FSOUG) [RAGEU PO LSO L &2 z ¥ 22O LEf std) Sperrey
CRUN [EETRY o LoRDTY M 1 5695 9 207 Anomyy {nds) duonsy
(Lo e ¥ * i T A3 ) AULDRED
AsoUan EEgEY o Lessai 4 9zTTH & 262 G4 tundh wonein
SOnSa0 BITTRL JO LORO [i] 4 18 0z oy ) Ml S8ES)
ol won gu}ﬁa?ﬂh«“ﬂﬂiﬂﬁ : L ol on LZ0Z X1 ) (h-ZoN) A
obenan s xx333 w0 Dumpoeny oon Erpa] B } a4 on 2202 uit faadd) " LRLON +) SN
TR0 10 $300F (FHOAL IR I REL] WA i F T e aa IS L0 s
et orchoes CURT WBREITIOD KO [y
abiwiony
R AT Sut null W Dlaos ARiouas]  auou DU ogL TE5E wE [T
EREs TRELOE DR (10 1 Dy Apeseuas | L= UL [ 207 LR g0
RSO 10 SN0 (R TEIAIDHY| 10N ] neg V3o DL KRR
] Mg FARE) WG D 50 R D

“sar peArssa Xt poam way Bupoesd Sisod;)
rrvey o usrns Haaun ypeeny o e scoc? |

(3]

6102 g ndues
urhd) sy

JRINLTIIOD (O RAN0E _Iﬁ._.

OO0 EITU K0 UG BT z
ARSI SLRINGT PIRGIETORY 13 UOEOIRY,

FBEM BIG] R DU LN [} SIRI0 Do G KK DUR LLCTE) Y| L] ..-“_aw::.-u TIOZ ¥R T R0 WD) 9
Paac sclues wads) e nue S LEs ichal i
. e Ly S ;
JURn Wt S bl KT L] @ 15 LI E 1 RS | B P07, a ' TTDT BUTTEG LUy 010 L
-— —_—— —
VOWIorH 10 samog iy FRE ] on UCTIFOA FUDRD ERURLEIRIO T | IR G D
unguow | jo op issulied

ARS3ET U B0 |0 i e b Do oys TR Do duns

Z#e]

G2 Feq mdues{uskd) pest

wcdog pus pret

Viva ALIVYND ¥3ALVAA

5)249| Ugld30 Aoioinbau /019G 2Uam SU0ILIDIIP

IV 21504 YL U3 POy 51| D0 uALaLE AuD

A4S 404L 22044 A[UD ING SIUDUIWIDIUAD 2T JIAT

a0} 91dwos 24\ ZE0E RQWEaDg 08 13]E Dyi o)
AJonuo ™ Jo ie] oL 4o poraad 2y Jcy 5

3 15 53|NS21 Dy} SM0YS DpG04 SI] S5m0

24RLG PUT {BJ2p2g 24 Bulpass3n aaioa Supjuiup

JNOA Ui SJUDUIMDIVOY 20 ) SILILW ATDuiing.

1200451G 5IMAIRG AJUNWILIO ) D]jLA0145D7

Fie

4034 DuD Tyl 2upw 20 'BATLCIUsDud o YEnaLy
DIDE ania 40 DWoG "Apuanbal) 2bunyd Lou

OF SIUBUNIDJUD3 DEDYL $0 SUOIDIIUDILTT D)
2500233 J024 w2 07w LDyl $59) SLUDUIWDILDD
DWiDE AT JTHLOW Of SN SMI|[D D4TIG 4]

Asuaby uarIajo.y [PiUaLUsIIAUL
TILID LIS DU AG 125 DaB 5 OHd UiERY
04 W54 B472dX3 U0 UMWy Ou 51 TUAYY
YILs MSI3G J23TM Bupjuiap U1 JuDuiumius
B 10 [343) QUL - (G4} 1900 43jURE] DRz
siuswadinbag
WWDWIDALE AP0 FuD S4udWaAInkad
Bursadod put BulsGLIoWw J124 ] LM
Bu2io 4oy i394 iDL S4uD!
494 1G£8 512V - (G4 0a)
PUDEHD3G 4210,4) Busspuiag Adpwilig
5UDUILDLUID |iGoJaTL
JUD3 G4 SIUDLIDJUISIS 0 2SN DL
J0 51142025 YL 452434 10U OF S9QYVY
{4[D2Y 93 H5Lt paLPadx s ua waay U
S1DJDYL YIIYM MDIDG JUDLIDJUISIP J4TM
Bunutip jo [242] 241 - (9QuiV) jeog
{2427 JURL2IJUISIC) [ONRISDY WnWiXDYY
$JUDUIWDLUG) |DIGOJIIW JO
[CRHTLEINE33 AID3S2IDU St oy guisip
7] %G u3llippo ﬁUIh quuT ] m.L_.U.L ARG
SEDJDU] 2240 Supjulp Ul paso]|D
DI JUISIE B 40 302 b5ayER eyl
- [7Q21y) 12437 JUDID2JUISIQ [ENPIS2Y
LAW)XTYY JUDEIWOIU0S WAIXDYY

SIUBUILD U0 (DiGeJI
J0 {94383 U0} Aupssa30u
D 3 UDHIPPD 4D\ J2UDE !
AU B{0M SUD{ULIE UI PRACHD LWTyIa)
-UisiE B 40 1243] 45948 oy 1 - (1QuW)
[94D07 JLDLOD JUISH] [CNPISIY WNWIXDYY @
ALo4os 3o wbabui D a0y rOopD 5oV
Y13y o Ysil _uuﬁun_xu 43 usiouy Su st
243YE Y2 195 J2immM bupjutag Ul jucu
W2IUS3 0 43 [242) 24 51 {g0V) P2,
DLl — |DOZ D43 JUDUMLIDIUSS WD
12304 Bunqurip
40 23uza0add pua w1504 wIpo By saatoad o)
240 1YY AJDpUGIOG >mn._c:;u..: wawinasl
2{3epoaD 3500 YL m-r:u_._ aYgisva,; T O
2yl a1 95943 52 §3% 23 570V J9nM Bubjuap
LF P35SH[0 52 [DY L JUDUIWIBILID D }3 [2:
isxyb

{UDLIAIDLUDT) LUMLUEXDYY

0} 15w walshs Jalom BNy

SIUTWINNYZE S0 43 MDDy saobhL

"PREIDIXI [ UHBYW JDUILLCIUCT 3 0 uDITY

<JJZUG) U.r_- ¥ ﬁ‘qw\\_nr..n-..u Uiy L.L.unnw?dmb&.

2240 0 SSIUIENDI DY} 40 DunsoRU

0 -{n 1) 3un Appiquay aazowepaydayy

sralzwonnu Of vyl oo

ol 210 ITyE 543315 5C150G5T Jo Fuasaad oyl

*.." 2NS0D2W 3 .ﬁ\wnm .s\._ ._N».—q -.‘idn.~ 5 4 o Y

Apaq Y4 AQ pOGIRSgR USTIPD.

J0 2an50 - {udwanu}anos aad swaanpny

42402 U1 ALIANLIDOIEDL DUy

J0 2unEpu B - (fad) a3y a3d sarnzeony

0C 000’000 01 2 Aunad 21Buis o uo ‘samaA

OO 2 Ut 2inui sus 0} um“_un_nutu.

43 aad fapd ud - {j/swoutouos ) aagy

aod switboumy Jo (3dd) wema gad s1.00g

Q00'DOY 01 W A

uad 2|BuIs 5 43 “sUTaA OO0 Z W 2INUIN dUB B

spuatds3da00 uaypg ped juod auo .mq...m..uu L3y

424 mwoabiaasiyy Jo {qdd} uoypg 4 D4

000 01%

w Auuad 2jBurs © 40 sa0a4 bav W 24rul pud

o} spuadsadod woluu uad jsod aud - [k
wayy a3d mwoubygny e (wdd) voyru aad 515

twasaad Jou s1 juangiysuo ) {CY £24D

pul sisAoun Anaaqe - (Gl s 22 ver

suonluijop Bu

a1y pageaoad a4,
noA dyay oy i
-DDUGGD FUD SWaRi Ausw pui)

SNOILLINIF3@ % SWY31 tNd3asn

£} D53} PUDISIZELN 2152
Jmplumy 3 0w J1nu noA sugiy
A 0A Q04 SIY) UT

19



49

]

suonnjos Jalep) 2anesadoo) buiplaoid

JIIOM DU ASu31U0|A|

¥oeqpea4 ' UoIIRIUaSDId AHUNWWO)

dONVHO ONIT1I8
43M3S d3Ss0d0ud




Nig xel Lyradoud 9IAI3S 191BMIISEM 10} S|jIq JoW03ISNd
Uo paziwa}l 994 Jenuuy Ayruow-iq jo Bunew 33311Q

(uoisiA|Q J2anseau]-xe]) (Auedwod Ay1ed-puiyy ‘a3eaiid)

A1uno) £2133U0 (10PUDA S14V :IOpUIA

$s930.4 bul))ig pasodo.d $s9304d Bunig Juaiin)

wea| a3lAaleg Jswolsn) MTW

ejeq Bui)ig jo Juswabeueyy

$S920.d ' JOPUIA MON

abuey) pasodoid



Aoeandoe bunq pue weuboud
Aanuns plal) papuedxy
abueyd
JOpUIA W4} SBuines 1aN e

:sbuines jenuuy 000°'004$

321A13S palinbau
104 92110eid UOWWIOD) o

asn Jo adAy Ag a3eu 1e)4
—juow AISAS 93) SWES e

HO pauin] s Jouued 33IAI3S e
:9DIAI9S pajepuepy

ain)on}s ajey

¢Aym

buipus j10ddns 10npo.d
540443 bunjuiad Jopuap
$S922E JUNODJE BUIUO ON
buiiq sseyaded oN
:suoljeyiwi yuasin)

douaadx3y ;awo)lsn)




UOoI}BDIJIJON Jawo3isn)
#202 ONIYdS/YILINIM

1ig xel uo sieaddy 234 Jamas UOIEISPISUO)) pieog
%202 4390120 €202 11vd

dojs sjig Ajyjuow-ig ¥2eqpasy Ajunwiwo)
4202 ‘T ANl €202 YIWWNS/ONIUIS

#20¢ ‘T Ain[ 3110943
aulauwi] pasodo.id



sscel sty ogeety s RS b e gl

sjuawiAed ZT 1an0

o mint 0 e 119 xel Aed 03 uonpdo apinoid 03 (Aed 1iews Ase3)
e e TS e uoizdo yuswAed Ayauow Bunsind si A1uno?

V0 INa AB NOdNOD LNIWAY

oot sjuswAed gz 1o T 49A0 pied aq 03 bunjig jenuuy e
** MU s Jeym

uoljeubisag Ajied a)qisuodsay e

S uaprnme ad 07 1L

"]
-n!!ﬂ-znuo.rh-_lg

$S920.d U317 jenuuy Ja3ep auQ A2.33UoW «
o e 20O B sNiq Ajyauow-1g «
*** Jo uopeulw3

coapTse Liai:]
= SFOYYNI MIN >

T3IAITIY SLHIAYS

T ST0IZL - WRR O STETLC L IER!
S0LL-2HSTE FRUGITS ARon
S01Z 109 ‘G

Gee o sabu eyD wel mo.-m

-




Jngnd ay3 03
uado ale sbunasyy 510133213 JO pieog AJYJUOW e
sbupeaw Jnqnd

Bulieay ongnd bujpnjoul ssesoud jenuuy e
jeaoaddy yabpng

bulteay ongnd + uoI1IEIIJIJ0U PBYIBIA e
$$370.1d buinas ayey

***abueyd j,uom jeym

fouaiedsuesy
0} JUBWHWWOo)

P

21

il



SJ91U3J 15155 01 saljunuoddQ e
Jeak 1ad Jswolsnd Jad 1ipald|eio] e
sjuswsaanbal A1iqibng «

Buipun} weiboud a)gejleny e
Suol}eIapiIsuo)

-+ * kemiapun uonenjead weisboid

weiboid aruelsissy
Jawojsn)) jennuapisay

|



o0
(%

salelqq] 8314 Ajuno) Aa1ajuop ‘Youeag euliepy
(fQjuo ysiueds) wd p0:9 3e 2 Isnbny ‘Aepsaupam  EIP

saiielqi] 2244 fjuno) Aa193uop ‘Youelg euliepw

(Kuo ysnbuz) wd 9o:9 je T 3snbny ‘Aepsan)

N
mmc__mméen__._cm_zmomON
(Ajuo ysiueds) wd 00:9 3e 02 An[ ‘Aepsanyy @

seutes ‘Areqriueiqen )y @
(Ajuo ysnbu3) wd 00:9 38 8T AIn[ ‘AepsanL  gErig

ayepdn-buniq/bio-1a)emauoiaiajuow 5J9Wo3snd 0]
1U9s 9q 0] pJedlsod pue aufuo sjleyaq e«
ndul unoA J1wgns 0} WIo4 auljuQ JN0 3sM o uosiad-ul pue AjjenuiIA e
abuey> buniq pasodoud ayj uo Induj aseys uoissnasig pue uojjejuasaid
Aovda3iad Liwans SWNYO4 ALINNWWOD

yoeqpaa4 1 YyseasnQ aining



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
2022/2023 INVESTMENT POLICY
Page |

CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT POLICY

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

State law requires that the District’s Treasurer submit to the Board an annual statement of
Investment Policy and periodic reports regarding investments and deposits. This document is the
Annual Statement of Investment Policy for FY 2022/2023.

Pursuant to California Government Code Sections 61050(c) and 61053 (b) the Board of
Directors (“Board”) has appointed the General Manager to be the District Treasurer. Pursuant to
Government Code Section 61053(a), the Board has established an alternative depository, other than
the County of Monterey, for the District’s funds.

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 53646(a)(2), regarding investments and
deposits of District funds, the District deposits and investments shall be made by the District in
accordance with this policy.

L OVERALL POLICY

When investing, re-investing, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling or managing public
funds, the primary objective of the District shall be to safeguard the principal of the funds under its
control. The secondary objective shall be to meet the liquidity needs of the District. The third
objective shall be to achieve a return on the funds under the District’s control. When depositing
funds pursuant to Section 53630 et seq., the District’s primary objective shall be to realize
maximum return, consistent with prudent financial management.

The District shall maintain an operating fund with enough reserve to avoid borrowing
because of routine disruptions in revenue. The District shall maintain a replacement fund with a
reserve fund for the replacement of facilities which will avoid all or part of the cost of borrowing.
A reserve fund element should be calculated for each physical asset. The District shall maintain a
reserve fund to replace facilities lost due to catastrophic events and to pay for the defense of claims
often associated with such losses.

I APPLICABLE LAW

All references to code sections in this Statement, unless otherwise specified, are from the
California Government Code. The District's investment policy is based on provisions of the
California Government Code commencing with Section 53600 governing the investments of local
agency funds and deposits of public monies. All references to code sections in this Statement,
unless otherwise specified, are from the California Government Code.



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
202272023 INVESTMENT POLICY
Page 2

The District's investment policy is based on provisions of the Section 53600 and following
governing the investments of local agency funds and public monies. The District’s deposit policy is
based on the provisions Section 53630 and following governing the deposit of local agency funds
and public monies.

All District funds will be invested in compliance with governing provisions of law
Government Code Sections 53600 et seq. and this policy. All District deposits will be made in
compliance with Sections 53630 and following and this policy. If there is any inconsistency or
conflict between the applicable state laws and the policies expressed in this Statement, the statutory
provision shall be the policy of the District.

In accordance with Section 53600.3, the District intends to invest prudently in order to
safeguard the invested principal and maintain adequate cash availability for the anticipated needs of
the District. In accordance with Section 53637, the District intends to make its deposits with the
objective of realizing maximum return, consistent with prudent financial management. With
respect to deposits made by the District, such deposits shall be made with As far as possible, all
money belonging to or in the custody of the District, including money paid to the Treasurer or other
official to pay the principal, interest, or penalties of bonds, shall be deposited for safekeeping in an
institution as described in Section 53635.2.

1. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

A. Funds For Immediate Expenditure. An amount approximately equal to the total of
all District expenditures for an average three-month period shall be maintained in active deposits, as
defined by Section 53644(a), such as the State Treasurer's Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).
All Deposits (both active and inactive) shall be managed in accordance with Sections 53630
through 53686.

B. Funds Not Required for Immediate Expenditure. All funds in excess of the amount
needed for immediate expenditure as described in paragraph A, shall either be a deposited as set

forth in Section V, below with the objective of realizing maximum return, or invested in acceptable
investment instruments as described in Section IV, below. Periodic analysis of cash flow during the
fiscal year shall serve as the basis for determining when such funds should be made available for

expenditure, so that an appropriate maturity date of deposits or investments may be fixed
accordingly.

C. Earned Interest. In accordance with Section 53647, interest earned on all money
deposited belongs to, and shall be paid quarterly into the general fund of, the District, unless
otherwise directed by law. Notwithstanding this provision, the Board may direct such interest to be
paid to the fund which contains the principal on which the interest accrued.



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
2022/2023 INVESTMENT POLICY
Page 3

IV. ACCEPTABLE INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS

The District’s investment portfolio may include the following instruments subject to state
law and subject to the constraints herein stated:

A. Negotiable certificaies of deposits, subject to the limitations set forth in Section
53601(h) and Section 53638. Purchases of certificates of deposits shall not exceed thirty percent
(30%) of the District's idle funds;

B. Deposits in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), subject to the provisions
governing deposits which are set forth in Sections 53630 through 53686. No investment with the
Local Agency Investment Fund may, by state regulation, exceed fifty million dollars ($50,000,000);

C. Passbook savings accounts, subject to the provisions governing deposits which are
set forth in Sections 53630 through 53686. In accordance with Section 53637, no funds shall be
deposited into a credit union if a member of the Board or a District employee also serves on the
board of directors or any committee of the credit union;

D. Bonds and other evidences of indebtedness as set forth in Section 53601(a)-(e);

E. Obligations issued by banks, and other participations and instruments as described in
Section 53601(f);

F. Bankers acceptances as described in Section 53601(g);

G. Any other security or investment authorized by Section 53601(a)-(p).

V. DEPOSITS

A. All deposits shall be made in accordance with state law and are subject to the constraints
stated herein:

1. The depository has received an overall rating of not less than “satisfactory” in its

most recent evaluation by the appropriate federal financial supervisory agency in accordance with
Section 53635.2;

2. The funds are available for withdrawal in accordance with Section 53644;
3. Security is provided for the deposits in accordance with Section 53652;

4. The deposits do not exceed the maximum deposit limitations set forth in Section
53638 and 53635.8;



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

2022/2023 INVESTMENT POLICY

Page 4
5. The contract for deposit complies with Section 53649; and
6. All other requirements of state law are met.

B. Types of deposits authorized are:

I. Deposits in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), subject to the provisions
governing deposits which are set forth in Sections 53630 through 53686. No investment with the
Local Agency Investment Fund may, by state regulation, exceed fifty million dollars ($50,000,000);

2. Passbook savings accounts, subject to the provisions governing deposits which
are set forth in Sections 53630 through 53686. In accordance with Section 53637, no funds shall be

deposited into a credit union if a member of the Board or a District employee also serves on the
board of directors or any committee of the credit union;

3. Time deposits (sometimes referred to as non-negotiable certificates of deposit);
and

4. Any other deposits allowed by law.

VI.  INVESTMENT AUTHORITY AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

A. District Treasurer. The District General Manager shall perform the duties of
"“treasurer” under Sections 53630 through Sections 53686. District funds deposited in any account
are deemed to be in the treasury of the District, pursuant to Section 53636. The District Treasurer is
responsible for the safekeeping of money in his or her custody and shall enter into any contract with
a depository relating to any deposit which in his or her judgment is to the public advantage, as
provided by Section 53649. The District Treasurer is responsible for compliance with all state laws
governing the day-to-day management of deposits as set forth in Sections 53630 through 53686.

B. Borrowing funds. In making any decision that involves borrowing in the amount of
one hundred thousand ($100,000) or more, the Board shall discuss, consider, and deliberate each
decision as a separate item of business on the agenda of its meeting as prescribed in the Government
Code, commencing at Section 54950.

C. Investment Committee. The Board Investment Committee shall meet periodically to
review the cash flow requirements of the District and the compliance of its deposits and investments
with this Statement.

D. Monthly report. As required by Section 53646, the District's Treasurer shall render a
monthly report to the Board, the chief executive officer and the internal auditor, including the
following information about each of the District's deposits and investments:

1. The type of deposit or investment, issuer, date of maturity par;



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
2022/2023 INVESTMENT POLICY
Page 5

2. The total dollar amount invested in all securities, investments and moneys
held by the District;

3. Description of any of the District’s funds, investments or programs that are
under the management of contracted parties, including lending programs.
With respect to all of the District's securities that are under management of
any outside party that is not also a local agency or LAIF, the report shall also
include a current market value as of the date of the report, and shall include
the source of this same valuation.

4. A statement of compliance of the portfolio to this Statement of Investment
Policy, or, if the portfolio or any portion of it is not invested in accordance
with this Statement of Investment, a clear and concise statement identifying
the manner in which the portfolio is out of compliance with this Statement of
Investment.

5. A statement denoting the ability of the District to meet its expenditures for
the next six months, or provide an explanation as to why sufficient money
shall, or may not be available.

6. A subsidiary ledger of deposits and investments may be used in the report in
accordance with accepted accounting practices.

7. Whatever additional information the Board may require.

E. In-Lieu Statements. For District deposits and investments placed in the Local
Agency Investment Fund, created by Section 16429.1, in National Credit Union Share Insurance
Fund-insured accounts in a credit union, in accounts insured or guaranteed pursuant to Section
14858 of the Financial Code, or in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation-insured accounts in a
bank or savings and loan association, in a county investment pool, or any combination of these, the
Treasurer may supply the most recent statement or statements received by the District from these
institutions in lieu of the information required by paragraph D(1)-(7) above.

F. Annual Board Review. The Board shall meet annually to review the District
Investment portfolio, monthly reports prepared pursuant to Section 53646 of the Government Code,
and any other relevant information regarding anticipated cash requirements for the purpose of
selecting deposit or investment instruments for District funds.



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
2023/2024 INVESTMENT POLICY
Page |

CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
INVESTMENT AND DEPOSIT POLICY

BACKGROUND AND PURPOSE

State law requires that the District’s Treasurer submit to the Board an annual statement of
Investment Policy and periodic reports regarding investments and deposits. This document is the
Annual Statement of Investment Policy for FY 2023/2024.

Pursuant to California Government Code Sections 61050(c) and 61053 (b) the Board of
Directors (“Board™) has appointed the Genera! Manager to be the District Treasurer. Pursuant to
Government Code Section 61053(a), the Board has established an alternative depository, other than
the County of Monterey, for the District’s funds.

Pursuant to California Government Code Section 53646(a)(2), regarding investments and
deposits of District funds, the District deposits and investments shail be made by the District in
accordance with this policy.

L OVERALL POLICY

When investing, re-investing, purchasing, acquiring, exchanging, selling or managing public
funds, the primary objective of the District shall be to safeguard the principal of the funds under its
control. The secondary objective shall be to meet the liquidity needs of the District. The third
objective shall be to achieve a return on the funds under the District’s control. When depositing
funds pursuant to Section 53630 et seq., the District’s primary objective shall be to realize
maximum return, consistent with prudent financial management.

The District shall maintain an operating fund with enough reserve to avoid borrowing
because of routine disruptions in revenue. The District shall maintain a replacement fund with a
reserve fund for the replacement of facilities which will avoid all or part of the cost of borrowing.
A reserve fund element should be calculated for each physical asset. The District shall maintain a
reserve fund to replace facilities lost due to catastrophic events and to pay for the defense of claims
often associated with such losses.

II. APPLICABLE LAW

All references to code sections in this Statement, unless otherwise specified, are from the
California Government Code. The District's investment policy is based on provisions of the
California Government Code commencing with Section 53600 governing the investments of local
agency funds and deposits of public monies. All references to code sections in this Statement,
unless otherwise specified, are from the California Government Code.



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
2023/2024 INVESTMENT POLICY
Page 2

The District's investment policy is based on provisions of the Section 53600 and following
governing the investments of local agency funds and public monies. The District’s deposit policy is
based on the provisions Section 53630 and following governing the deposit of local agency funds
and public monies.

All District funds will be invested in compliance with governing provisions of law
Government Code Sections 53600 et seq. and this policy. All District deposits will be made in
compliance with Sections 53630 and following and this policy. If there is any inconsistency or
conflict between the applicable state laws and the policies expressed in this Statement, the statutory
provision shall be the policy of the District.

In accordance with Section 53600.3, the District intends to invest prudently in order to
safeguard the invested principal and maintain adequate cash availability for the anticipated needs of
the District. In accordance with Section 53637, the District intends to make its deposits with the
objective of realizing maximum return, consistent with prudent financial management. With
respect to deposits made by the District, such deposits shall be made with As far as possible, all
money belonging to or in the custody of the District, including money paid to the Treasurer or other
official to pay the principal, interest, or penalties of bonds, shall be deposited for safekeeping in an
institution as described in Section 53635.2.

II. AVAILABILITY OF FUNDS

A. Funds For Immediate Expenditure. An amount approximately equal to the total of
all District expenditures for an average three-month period shall be maintained in active deposits, as
defined by Section 53644(a), such as the State Treasurer's Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).
All Deposits (both active and inactive) shall be managed in accordance with Sections 53630
through 53686.

B. Funds Not Required for Immediate Expenditure. All funds in excess of the amount
needed for immediate expenditure as described in paragraph A, shall either be a deposited as set
forth in Section V, below with the objective of realizing maximum return, or invested in acceptable
investment instruments as described in Section IV, below. Periodic analysis of cash flow during the
fiscal year shall serve as the basis for determining when such funds should be made available for

expenditure, so that an appropriate maturity date of deposits or investments may be fixed
accordingly.

C. Earned Interest. In accordance with Section 53647, interest earned on all money
deposited belongs to, and shall be paid quarterly into the general fund of, the District, unless
otherwise directed by law. Notwithstanding this provision, the Board may direct such interest to be
paid to the fund which contains the principal on which the interest accrued.




CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
2023/2024 INVESTMENT POLICY
Page 3

IV.  ACCEPTABLE INVESTMENT INSTRUMENTS

The District’s investment portfolio may include the following instruments subject to state
law and subject to the constraints herein stated:

A. Negotiable certificates of deposits, subject to the limitations set forth in Section
53601(h) and Section 53638. Purchases of certificates of deposits shall not exceed thirty percent
(30%) of the District's idle funds;

B. Deposits in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), subject to the provisions
governing deposits which are set forth in Sections 53630 through 53686. No investment with the
Local Agency Investment Fund may, by state regulation, exceed fifty million dollars ($50,000,000);

C. Passbook savings accounts, subject to the provisions governing deposits which are
set forth in Sections 53630 through 53686. In accordance with Section 53637, no funds shall be
deposited into a credit union if a member of the Board or a District employee also serves on the
board of directors or any committee of the credit union;

D. Bonds and other evidences of indebtedness as set forth in Section 53601(a)-(e);

E. Obligations issued by banks, and other participations and instruments as described in
Section 53601();

F. Bankers acceptances as described in Section 53601(g);

G. Any other security or investment authorized by Section 53601(a)-(p).

V. DEPOSITS

A. All deposits shall be made in accordance with state law and are subject to the constraints
stated herein:

1. The depository has received an overall rating of not less than “satisfactory” in its

most recent evaluation by the appropriate federal financial supervisory agency in accordance with
Section 53635.2;

2. The funds are available for withdrawal in accordance with Section 53644;
3. Security is provided for the deposits in accordance with Section 53652;

4. The deposits do not exceed the maximum deposit limitations set forth in Section
53638 and 53635.8;



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
2023/2024 INVESTMENT POLICY
Page 4

5. The contract for deposit complies with Section 53649; and
6. All other requirements of state law are met.
B. Types of deposits authorized are:

1. Deposits in the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF), subject to the provisions
governing deposits which are set forth in Sections 53630 through 53686. No investment with the
Local Agency Investment Fund may, by state regulation, exceed fifty million dollars ($50,000,000);

2. Passbook savings accounts, subject to the provisions governing deposits which
are set forth in Sections 53630 through 53686. In accordance with Section 53637, no funds shall be
deposited into a credit union if a member of the Board or a District employee also serves on the
board of directors or any committee of the credit union;

3. Time deposits (sometimes referred to as non-negotiable certificates of deposit);
and

4. Any other deposits allowed by law.

VI.  INVESTMENT AUTHORITY AND REPORTING REQUIREMENTS

A. District Treasurer. The District General Manager shall perform the duties of
“treasurer” under Sections 53630 through Sections 53686. District funds deposited in any account
are deemed to be in the treasury of the Disirict, pursuant to Section 53636. The District Treasurer is
responsible for the safekeeping of money in his or her custody and shall enter into any contract with
a depository relating to any deposit which in his or her judgment is to the public advantage, as
provided by Section 53649. The District Treasurer is responsible for compliance with all state laws
governing the day-to-day management of deposits as set forth in Sections 53630 through 53686.

B. Borrowing funds. In making any decision that involves borrowing in the amount of
one hundred thousand (3100,000) or more, the Board shall discuss, consider, and deliberate each
decision as a separate item of business on the agenda of its meeting as prescribed in the Government
Code, commencing at Section 54950.

C. Investment Committee. The Board Investment Committee shall meet periodically to
review the cash flow requirements of the District and the compliance of its deposits and investments
with this Statement.

D. Monthly report. As required by Section 53646, the District's Treasurer shall render a
monthly report to the Board, the chief executive officer and the internal auditor, including the
following information about each of the District's deposits and investments:

1. The type of deposit or investment, issuer, date of maturity par;



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
2023/2024 INVESTMENT POLICY

Page 5

7.

The total dollar amount invested in all securities, investments and moneys
held by the District;

Description of any of the District's funds, investments or programs that are
under the management of contracted parties, including lending programs.
With respect to all of the District's securities that are under management of
any outside party that is not also a local agency or LAIF, the report shall also
include a current market value as of the date of the report, and shall include
the source of this same valuation.

A statement of compliance of the portfolio to this Statement of Investment
Policy, or, if the portfolio or any portion of it is not invested in accordance
with this Statement of Investment, a clear and concise statement identifying
the manner in which the portfolio is out of compliance with this Statement of
Investment.

A statement denoting the ability of the District to meet its expenditures for
the next six months, or provide an explanation as to why sufficient money

shall, or may not be available.

A subsidiary ledger of deposits and investments may be used in the report in
accordance with accepted accounting practices.

Whatever additional information the Board may require.

E. In-Lieu Statements. For District deposits and investments placed in the Local
Agency Investment Fund, created by Section 16429.1, in National Credit Union Share Insurance
Fund-insured accounts in a credit union, in accounts insured or guaranteed pursuant to Section
14858 of the Financial Code, or in Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation-insured accounts in a
bank or savings and loan association, in a county investment pool, or any combination of these, the
Treasurer may supply the most recent statement or statements received by the District from these
institutions in lieu of the information required by paragraph D(1)-(7) above.

F. Annual Board Review. The Board shall meet annually to review the District
Investment portfolio, monthly reports prepared pursuant to Section 53646 of the Government Code,
and any other relevant information regarding anticipated cash requirements for the purpose of
selecting deposit or investment instruments for District funds.

33



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT
From the desk of

Eric Tynan — General Manager:

TO: CCSD Board of Directors
DATE: June 20, 2023

RE: Consider Approving Audit Proposal from Fechter &Company for 2024, 2025 & 2026

RECOMMENDATION;

Approve the proposal for audit services for 2024, 2025 & 2026
SUMMARY:

In 2021, after a thorough investigation Castroville CSD contracted with Fechter & Company to
provide the District’s audit to the standard required by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). Since that time they have shown themselves to be very knowledgeable and a
resource to District staff.

The effort has resulted in clean audits, a reduced rate from the previous auditor and a
seamless process that went both efficiently and professionally. After consulting with Staff, |
conclude it would be a poor decision to try and research a new auditor and risk higher fees
with a less efficient partnership when Fechter & Company has shown it has the experience
and talent to provide the District competent, professional and most importantly, defensible
financial oversight.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The costs would be $ 18,500, $19,500 & $20,500 respectfully for the next three years. The
2024 & 2025 cost are actually lower than the fees paid to our previous auditor. In addition,

Fechter & Company has the ability to perform other financial reporting requirements, GASB 68
at a significant savings to the District.

For these reasons | hope the Board will approve the proposal for Auditing services from
Fechter & Company for fiscal years 2024, 2025 and 2026.

HPage



FECHTER
& COMPANY

Certified Public Accountants Craig R. Fechter, CPA, MST
(1976 - 2022)

E

May 10, 2023

Board of Directors and Lidia Santos, Office Manager
Castroville Community Services District

11499 Geil Street

Castroville, CA 95012

Dear Ms. Santos,

Fechter & Company, Certified Public Accountants, is pleased to present our proposal to provide audit
services to the Castroville Community Services District. At the conclusion of the upcoming audit for
fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, we will have performed three years of audit services and agreed to in
our initial proposal dated February 5, 2021. We anticipate continuing these same services, including
financial statement preparation, GASB 68 and 75 calculations and adjustments, presentations to the

Board, and preparation of the annual Financial Transactions Report required by the State Contreller’s
Office.

Each year, there will be a new Engagement Letter to sign, which will satisfy the required
communications with management and those charged with governance at the outset of an audit
engagement. Each Engagement Letter will include the current language required by continuously

evolving accounting principles generally accepted in the United States, but will adhere to the pricing
terms set forth below:

2024 2025 2026
Base Audit Fees 19,000 19,950 20,948
Less Multi-Year Discount (2,500) (2,550) (2,653)
Total Discounted Audit Fees 16,500 17,400 18,295
Other Non-Attest Services:
State Controller's Office Report Preparation 2,000 2,100 2,205
Total Service Fees $ 18500 § 19500 §$ 20,500

This proposal is an irrevocable offer valid for 90 days from the date of the proposal. I am authorized
to represent and obligate our Firm contractually to Castroville Community Services District. The
District is welcome to contact our office with any questions or clarifications regarding this proposal.

3445 American River Drive Suite A | Sacramento, CA 95864 | ph 916-333-5360 | fax 916-333-5370
www.fechtercpa.com
Member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants Tax Section
and California Society of CPAs ‘35

1
o



Board of Directors and Lidia Santos, Office Manager
Castroville Community Services District

May 10, 2023

Page 2

We have enjoyed working with the District since 2021 and appreciate the continued opportunity to be
of service. Thank you for considering our proposal.

Very truly yours,

%

Michael Fink, CPA,
Shareholder

Fechter & Company
Certified Public Accountants

A
S

A



CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY
SERVICES DISTRICT

From the desk of

Eric Tynan — General Manager

TO: CCSD Board of Directors
DATE: June 20, 2023

RE:  Consider Approving MNS Proposal to Perform Additional Pemmitting and LLand

Washington Sewer Bypass:

After serious discussion with MNS regarding confusion and performance issues
regarding this project some clarification and additional direction has been given.

| believe these two proposals address those issues and | recommend approving the
proposals.

e Arevised MNS proposal to perform jurisdictional permitting (RWQCB and
CDFW,) for the drainage channel. This proposal is reduced from $46,202 to
$19,622 as a result of removing the Caltrans archaeological report, and US Army

Corps permit. This work is anticipated to be reimbursed under the construction
grant.

o MNS proposal to provide land acquisition support, and Caltrans encroachment
permitting ($81,610). These services are critical path to the project to obtain
permission for submittal of the coastal development permit application. This
scope of work was previously submitted under an earlier unapproved proposal
for comprehensive services to complete work on the project through construction,
but is being expedited to advance the project. This work is anticipated to be
reimbursed under the construction grant.

FISCAL IMPACT:

The total costs would be $101,232.



OMNS

May 26, 2023

Eric Tynan, General Manager
Castroville Community Services District
11499 Geil Street

Castroville, CA 95012

Subject: Proposal for Professional Engineering — Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass, Regulatory
Permitting Support

Dear Mr. Tynan:

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this amendment request for additional services for the Washington Sewer Trunk
Line Bypass Project (Project) for the Castroville Community Services District (District). Following discussions with the District
regarding environmental permitting, the District requested additional permitting assistance be included in the Project.

Project Understanding

MNS is currently providing services to the District for the Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass, a new 24-inch trunk sewer
bypass main approximately 1,200 feet in length extending from the intersection of Washington Street and Merritt Street to
the corner of Washington Street and Tembladera Street, then across undeveloped areas and under Highway 1 to the
Monterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency (MRWPCA) pump station; located at the south end of Watsonville Road
(Project).

During the environmental permitting process, a drainage channel along Watsonville Road was identified which will be
disturbed during the course of construction. Due to this disruption, additional jurisdictional permitting will be required from
the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) and California Department of Fish and Wildlife (CDFW). Our
subconsultant, Rincon Consultants will apply for and obtain these required permits.

Project Scope of Work

Due to the changes to the scope of the Project, MNS proposes to facilitate additional support services by revising MNS Task
5. A brief description of tasks and responsibilities is described below.

Task 5 - Environmental Review and Permitting Support

Subtask 5.2 — lurisdictional Agency Permitting

Rincon will apply for and obtain a RWQCB Water Quality Certification and CDFW Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement
permit application in support of the Project as detailed in Rincon’'s amendment request, attached. MNS will coordinate
Rincon's work and provide design detail information as needed to support angoing permitting efforts. We included budget
to attend one added meeting with the agencies if required. MNS will also revise plans to incorporate up to ane round of
comments from each agency into the contract documents.

MNS will coordinate fee submittal by the District as required for permits.
We assume the District will pay all fees associated with the environmental permit applications.
Assumptions
= Al permit fees will be paid by the District.
Compensation

MNS proposes to perform the services described herein for a not-to-exceed fee estimate of $19,622. A detailed fee proposal

spreadsheet is provided as an attachment. All fees are in accordance with the 2023 MNS Standard Fee Schedule, also included
as an attachment.

WWW MNSENGINEERS.COM 3 8



QNMNS

Schedule

Due to unknown scheduling constraints assaciated with permitting, a firm schedule cannot be provided, The MNS team will
maintain continuous forward progress and keep the District up to date with the progress of the work.

Closing

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this amendment proposal. We are excited and look forward to continuing work with
the District. This proposal is valid for six months from the date of submission. Please feel free to contact me with any questions
you may have about our submittal at 805.722.2734 or npanofsky@mnsengineers.com. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
MNS Engineers, Inc.

JoL_

Nick Panofsky, PE
Principal Engineer
Attachments:

MNS Fee Schedule

MNS Fee Spreadshest
Rincon Amendment Proposal

WWW MNSENGINEERS.COM

29



OMNS

2023 STANDARD SCHEDULE OF FEES

ENGINEERING

Principal ENGINBer ... $250
Lead ENGiNeRr ... s 255
Supervising Engineer.......covo 245
Senior Project Engineer ..o 225
Project ENgineer. ... 200
Associate Engineer ... 180
AsSISIANt ENgiNeer. ... 165
SURVEYING

Principal SUMVEYOT .......coverrsseen -$265
Lead SUrVEYOr ... 255
SUpBIVISING SUNVeYOT.....oecicanin . 220
Senior Project Surveyor ... 200
Project SUMVEYOT. ... 175
Associate Project Surveyor................ 165
Assistant Project Surveyor............. 150
Party Chigf (PW)........emsrmmsrissnn 180
Chainperson (PW)...mn. 150

One-Person Survey Crew (PW)......... 215

DIRECT EXPENSES

PROJECT/PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

Principal-In-Charge........cereons §325
Senior Project/Program Manager.....310
Project/Program Manager ............. 260
Assistant Project/Program Manager 245
Senior Project Coordinator ...........c.u.. 185
Project COOrdinator ... 155

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
Principal Construction Manager .....$315
Senior Construction Manager........... 275
Senior Resident Engineer.............. 250
Resident ENgineer. ... 240
Structure Representative..... 235
Construction Manager ... 220
Assistant Resident Engineer............. 200
Sr. Construction Inspector (PW] ...... 175
Construction Inspector {PW) ... 168
Office Administrator. ..o 130
TECHNICAL SUPPORT

CADD Manager ... $200
Supervising Technician ................ 170
Senior Technician ..o 160
Engineering Technician.............. - 125
ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

Senior Management Analyst......... .5185
Management Analyst.... ... 155
IT Technician.....cooe.. - 140
Graphics/Visualization Specialist...... 150
Administrative Assistant. ... 100

GOVERNMENT SERVICES
City Engineer £250
Deputy City Engineer..... 225

Assistant City Engineer...... 215
Plan Check Engineer...... eunees 190
Permit ENGiNeer. ... 185
City Inspector...........ee e 185
Senior City Inspactor (PW) ....oeeveeve 195
City Inspactor (PW).......mmmmmn 185
Principal Stormwater Specialist......... 180
Senior Stormwater Specialist............. 170
Stormwater Specialist........c.co 160
Stormwater Technician ... 140
Building Official.........v.coceerecrec e 220
Senior Building Inspector.................235
Building INspector ... 165
Planning Director....... e 225
Senior City Planner ... 205
Assistant Planner ..o 195
Senior Grant Writer

GrantWiiber. oo aias
Associate Grant Witer ... 150
Assistant Grant Writer ... 130

Use of outside consultants as well as copies, blueprints, survey stakes, monuments, computer plots, telephone, travel (out of area)
and all similar charges directly connected with the work will be charged at cost plus fifteen percent (15%). Mileage will be charged
at the current federal mileage reimbursement rate,

PREVAILING WAGE RATES

Rates shown with Prevailing Wage “(PW)” annotation are used for field work on projects subject to federal or state prevailing
wage law and are subject to increases per DIR.

ANNUAL ESCALATION

Standard fee rates provided for each classification are subject to 3.5% annual escalation or the most recent US Bureau of Labor
Statistics Consumer Price Index, whichever is higher.

OVERTIME

Overtime for non-exempt employees will be charged at 1.5 x hourly rate; overtime for axempt employees and other classification

will be charged at 1 x hourly rate.

=D



errtisef !
099% |ozez$ || LA
zT9'6T$ Tevvrs | tevens | | |eesz $| zx == [E10.1-GNS
= ¥ ] SINOH
ZZ9'6T$ | [ma0ans pyser’ [ vzv'ens | [Tav'ers B ose g 030
o'ors | 086'zs | AT Ter'els | Tp'eT$ | Ak 086'z$ 2 b g TEWsEL LD TR
i . syseL | EEES §ASEL woddns Bunyuisd - 5|
g 24! & 1 g z e = =
m m m- le m ..._ m m ”_ m m mw.nﬁ QGNW ey rzoz
BT =z B -3 = =
THER £ g :|E[E [ 2
ze8| = q g m g
..m.. m_ WI m m “__ B 8 i
s38| § ¥ g § F | & | 2
2| 8 3 E 2
13 a 2 m
» ] A \
= 2
- SINVLINSNODENS ONIIINIOND

T Juswpuawy ssedAg aur yunil Jamas uojbuiysem

PUISIA SAIBS AJUNWIWIOD) 3|JIACAISED



Rincon Consultants, Inc.

2511 Garden Road, Suite C-250
Monterey, California 93940

131 333 0310

info@rinconconseitants.com
www.rinconconsultants.com

Revised May 9, 2023
Project No: 19-07855

Nick Panofsky, Supervising Engineer

MNS Engineers, Inc.

811 El Capitan Way, Suite 130

San Luis Obispo, California 93401

Via email: npanofsky@mnsengineers.com

Subject: Propasal to Provide Additional Services for the Washington Street Sewer Bypass
Project, Castroville Community Services District, Monterey County, California

Dear Mr. Panofsky:

Rincon Consultants, Inc. {Rincon) is submitting this revised proposal (Amendment Reguest No. 1} to
augment our existing scope of work for providing environmental consulting services for the proposed
Castroville Community Services District (District} Washington Street Sewer Bypass Project (project).

During our biological site survey, it was determined the agricultural drainage ditch on the eastern side of
Watsonville Road is a jurisdictional feature. Rincon ariginally submitted this amendment request on
November 4, 2022. The original amendment request included additional tasks for jurisdictional
permitting and for preparation of a Historical Resources Compliance Report (HRCR) to address future
anticipated California Department of Transportation (Caltrans) encroachment permit requirements.

On May 8, 2023, Rincon staff participated in a phone call with MINS and District staff. On the call, District
staff directed Rincon to revise our scope of work to assume the project would qualify as exempt from
United States Army Corps of Engineers {USACE) jurisdictional permitting requirements. As such, we have
revised this proposal to remove USACE permitting support.

In addition, we have revised this proposal to remove the Caltrans HRCR task. Since Rincon submitted the
original amendment request in November 2022, we have successfully submitted non-HRCR cultural
resources reports for Caltrans review and approval on other projects. To conserve District budget, we
recommend submitting the previously prepared Historic Properties Identification Report (HPIR) to
Caltrans with the encroachment permit application. If Caltrans requires the HPIR be re-formatted to
meet their specific formatting requirements, Rincon can submit a separate scope and cost in the future.

Revised Scope of Work

This proposal does not modify the scope for existing Tasks 1 through 13 from the original proposal, nor
does it modify Task 15. This proposal adds new Task 16 to the scope of work.

Revised Task 14: Project Management

This proposal includes additional project management hours to account for the added scope and
extended duration of environmental services.

Environmentie! Scieanilsils Plannevs Engloaewrs



MNS Engineers, Inc.
Washington Street Sewer Bypass

Additional Task 16: Regulatory Permitting

Rincon will be responsible for preparation of permit applications/notifications, agency coordination, and
ather tasks required for compliance with the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act and California
Fish and Game Code. Due to the small area of disturbance and simplicity of the site {channelized ditch
with clear bed and banks), Rincon assumes a full jurisdictional delineation will not be required, and the
mapping conducted during the reconnaissance site visit and aerial imagery will be sufficient for
permitting. We expect the permit applications/notifications to include the following items at a
minimum:

= Name of applicant

*  Project description

= Location description

= Description of existing conditions and expected impacts

= Proposed fill/dredge volume and/or removal of vegetation

»  Proposed measures to avoid and minimize impacts to natural resources

USACE Nationwide Permit

On May 8, 2023, District staff directed Rincon to revise our scope of work to assume the project would
qualify as exempt from USACE permitting requirements. As such, this amendment request does not
include USACE permitting support.

RWQCB Waste Discharge Requirements Permit

Due to the drainage qualifying as a water of the State, issuance of a Waste Discharge Requirements
{WDRs) permit from the Regional Water Quality Control Board (RWQCB) is required to achieve
compliance with the Porter-Cologne Water Quality Control Act {if applicable; dependent on final design).
This task involves preparation and submittal of an application for WDRs permit. We will provide
MNS/the District the completed application for review and, upon approval, will submit it to the RWQCB.
in addition to the required permit application items identified above, the application will include all
measures that will be employed to avoid and minimize water quality impacts from construction.

We assume MNS or the District will be responsible for submitting the application fee to the RWQCB with
the complete application package.

CDFW Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement

The proposed project will also require issuance of a Lake and Streambed Alteration Agreement (LSAA)
from the California Department of Fish and Wildlife {COFW} pursuant to Section 1600 et seq. of the
CFGC. The CDFW requires notification through submittal of a notification package that includes the
required permit application items identified above and the COFW LSAA notification form to the
Environmental Permit Information Management System {EPIMS) online portal. This task includes the
preparation and submittal of the notification for LSAA. The completed notification will be provided to
MNS/the District for review, and, upon approval, Rincon will submit the application to the CDFW.

Woe assume MNS or the District will be responsible for submitting the notification fee to the CDFW with
the complete notification package.

Environmental Sciaaltigls Fleanaoars Enginears

42



MNS Engineers, In¢.
Washington Street Sewer Bypass

Response to Agency Comments

While it is our intention to provide complete permit applications/notifications to the agencies, we may
encounter one or more agencies that deem them incomplete. It is assumed that agency staff will require
additional information or clarification, such that agency coordination will be ongoing post-submittal and
resubmittals may be necessary. Upon receipt of any comments on completeness of the permit
applications/notifications, Rincon will prepare for MNS/District review and then submit responses
and/or resubmittals to agency staff. It is assumed that all supplemental information provided will be
sufficient to have the applications/notifications deemed complete, such that a third submittal would not
be required. Upon the determination of permit applications/notifications completeness, Rincon will
coordinate with agency staff on the timing for issuance of the permits.

Rincon’s virtual participation at up to a total of two (2) meetings with MNS/District staff and/or the
agencies is assumed in this subtask. Meeting or hearing attendance would be fielded by Rincon’s project
manager or another member of the management team.

Assumptions

We have made the following assumptions:

» Aformal jurisdictional delineation will not be required.
= MNS will provide necessary design details.

=  One round of consolidated cormments from MNS/District and one round of minimal comments
from each permitting agency will be addressed.

= MNS or the District will submit fees directly to the permitting agencies.

Schedule

Under Task 186, draft permit applications will be completed within four weeks of written authorization of
this amendment. Finalized permits are expected to take % to 12 months.

Cost

The estimated additional cost to complete this work scope is $14,471, which would increase our existing
budget of $117,590 to $132,061. See cost table below,

RINCON CONSULTANTS, INC.
Washington St Sewer Bypass Project - Amendment No. |

Environmental Services Program

Tasks Laber Direct Expense Budget
_Task14. Project Management ] 51,923 51923
| Task 16. Regulatory Permitting 512,548 512,548
| AMENDMENT NO. 1 BUDGET | $ 14,471 | % b 14,471
Environmental Scilentiszsls Flanneras Engloeswsra

44



MNS Engineers, Inc.
Washington Street Sewer Bypass

Closing

The proposed scope of work and cost estimate are fully negotiable to meet the needs of MNS and the
District. This offer for professional services will remain in effect for a period of 30 days from the date of
this proposal. All work would be performed in accordance with our existing contract dated July 29, 2022,

Any questions about the proposed scope can be directed to Amanda Antonelli, Project Manager, at
aantonelli@rinconconsultants.com.

Sincerely,
Rincon Consultants, Inc.

danda Atonall ~
Amanda Antonelli, MESM Megan Jon
Senior Environmental Planner/Project Manager Pr |

MPP

Environmental Sclentinls Planmpers Emngineears

43



ONMNS

B11 £l Capitan Way, Ste 130 / San Luis Obispo CA 93401
Ph. (805) 692-6921 / F. (B05) 692-6931

May 26, 2023

Eric Tynan, General Manager
Castroville Community Services District
11499 Geil Street

Castroville, CA 95012

Subject: Proposal for Professional Engineering Services - Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Right-of-
Way Acquisition

Dear Mr. Tynan:

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal for Professional Engineering and Construction Management Services
for final design and construction of the Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass Project (Project) for the Castroville Community
Services District (District). MNS Engineers, Inc. (MNS) offers our qualified team to provide professional services for this
Project.

Project Understanding

MNS recently completed 60% design documents for the Washington Sewer Trunk Line Bypass for a new 24-inch trunk sewer
bypass main approximately 1,200 feet in length extending from the intersection of Washington Street and Merritt Street to
the corner of Washington Street and Tembladera Street, then across undeveloped areas and under Highway 1 to the
Manterey Regional Water Pollution Control Agency (MRWPCA) pump station located at the south end of Watsonville Road.

The District recently has received notice of award for a $3.15M Smali Community Funding Clean Water State Revolving
Funding (CWSRF) grant for final design, permitting, and construction of the Project. It is our understanding the District would
like to advance the Project thru the land easement acquisition process. MNS proposes to provide the following services to
achieve this goal;

*  Temporary Construction and Permanent Easement Acquisition Support
Project Scope of Work

MNS has tailored a scope of work to provide engineering services to advance the Project. Proposed services are limited to
land acquisition support. A brief description of tasks and responsibilities are described below.

Task 1 - Project Management, QA/QC, and Meetings

This task includes Project Management, Quality Assurance/Quality Control {QA/QC), and Meetings associated with the
detailed design of the Project.

Subtask 1.1 - Project Management

The Project Manager will provide ongoing coordination of the project team including the District and the MNS project team.
He will also monitar the budget and serve as the main point of contact with the District. Frequent phone calls and e-mail
updates will be sent from the MNS Project Manager to the District General Manager in order to keep the coordination open
and up-to-date. The MNS Project Manager will submit monthly invoices with all supporting documentation in a format
acceptable to the District.

The MNS Project Manager will be responsible for ensuring all deliverable deadlines are met, all internal quality control reviews
are completed, and the final products meet the expectations of the District.

o
o



Mr. Eric Tynan
May 25, 2023
Page 2 of 3

Subtask 1.3 — Meetings

Over the course of the Project, MNS will facilitate and lead meetings and conference calls as required to move the Project
forward and ensure the District is informed and in concurrence with the progress of the project. The Project Manager, as well
as additional staff, will attend meetings as appropriate.

We anticipate participating in bi-weekly meetings over the course of the Project which is anticipated to last for 3 months. We
have budgeted to attend 7 meetings. All meatings are anticipated to be virtual.

Task 1 Deliverables

s Meeting Action Items
*  Monthly Invoices

Task 2 - Easement Acquisition Support

MNS will support acquisition of three permanent easements for the project, as well as three temporary construction
easements for construction and long-term access for the proposed improvements.

Subtask 2.1 — Easement Acquisition Support

MNS subconsultant, Associated Right of Way Services, Inc. (AR/WS), will provide easement acquisition support. Support
services include appraisals, and negotiation/acquisition support services. A detailed scope of work for AR/WS is provided as
an attachment. MNS5 will coordinate and support the work as needed.

Subtask 2.2 - Easement Plat Maps and Legal Descriptions
MNS will prepare legal descriptions and plat maps documenting the proposed temporary and permanent easements.

Task 2 Deliverables

e Easement Acquisition Documents per AR/WS Scope of Work
= Legal Descriptions and Plat Maps

Task 4 — Permitting Support
MNS will assist the District to acquire an encroachment permit from Caltrans as described in the following section.

Subtask 4.1 — Caltrans Encroachment Permit

MNS will apply for, and obtain an encroachment permit for construction of sewer main within Highway 1 and in Merritt Street
(Hwy 183} from Caltrans. MNS will prepare the TR-0100 form and attach the required supporting documents including a
Location Map and Traffic Control Plans and submit them to Caltrans District 5 Encroachment Permits Office for processing.
We will assist the District to prepare the letter of authorization, encroachment permit applications and the applicable fees. It
is expected that Caltrans will consider the current project as projects-funded-by-others using the Oversight Project {(OP)
process as the anticipated improvements within the State highway right-of-way is less than 51 million. MNS will review and
address comments from the Caltrans District 5 Permit Department and update the application package.

MNS proposes to communicate the schedule and funding deadlines to the Caltrans permit engineer at the beginning of the
Project. The key to expedited reviews is to include all required documentation with the Encroachment Application and meet
with Caltrans to explain the proposed improvements within the State right of way, the purpose and need of the Project as
well as Project constraints. Our Project schedule allows for two rounds of reviews from Caltrans and a comment resolution
meeting before the Encroachment Permit is issued,

We assume the District will pay all fees associated with the Caltrans permit application.

mnsengineers.com
TRANSPORTATION / WATER RESOURCES / GOVERNMENT SERVICES / FEDERAL

47



Mr. Eric Tynan
May 25, 2023
Page 3 of 3

Project Team

MNS has assembled a qualified team with the skills and expertise to bring this project to completion in line with the District’'s
poals. Detailed resumes for individual team members are available upon request. Project roles and responsibilities will be as
follows:

¢  Project Manager — Nick Panofsky, PE

¢  Survey Lead - Shane Sobecki, EIT, PLS

s  Right-of-way Acquisition Support — Associated Right of Way Services
s  Caltrans Permitting Support — Martha Dadala, PE

Additional staff will be utilized on an as-needed basis to complete the work as described herein.

Compensation

MNS proposes to perform the services described herein for a not-to-exceed fee estimate of $81,610. A breakdown by task is
provided in the following table. A detailed fee proposal spreadsheet is provided as an attachment. All fees are in accordance
with the MNS Standard Fee Schedule, also included as an attachment.

Task Fee
Task 1 — Project Management, QA/QC, and Meetings 54,640
Task 2 — Easerment Acquisition Support 554,170
Task 4 — Permitting Support $22,900

Total $81,610

Schedule

MNS will maintain continual forward progress to advance the project through land acquisition. Due to unknown scheduling
constraints associated with land acquisition and permitting, a firm schedule cannot be provided. MN5 will keep the District
up to date with progress of the work.

Closing

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this proposal. We are excited and look forward to working with the District. This
proposal is valid for six {6) months from the date of submission. Please feel free to contact me with any questions you may
have about our submittal at 805.722.2734 or npanofsky@mnsengineers.com. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
MNS Engineers, Inc.

2L £

Nick Panofsky, PE
Principal Engineer
Attachments;

MNS Fee Schedule
MNS Fee Spreadsheet
AR/WS Proposal

mnsengineers.com
TRANSPORTATION / WATER RESOURCES / GOVERNMENT SERVICES / FEDERAL

48



OMNS

2023 STANDARD SCHEDULE OF FEES

ENGINEERING

Principal Engineer ... $290
Lead Engineer 255
Supervising Enginger ..o 245
Senior Project Engineer ... 225
Praject ENgineer. ..o .. 200
Associate Engineer ..o 180
Assistant Engineer.... ..o oo 165
SURVEYING

Principal Surveyor ... —
Lead Surveyor 255
SUpervising SUMNVeYor ... 220
Senior Project Surveyor ... crenanie 200
Project SUnVeyor. ... 113
Associate Project Surveyor............ . 165
Assistant Project Surveyor................. 150
Party Chigf (PW).... oo 180

Chainperson (PW) .o 150
One-Person Survey Crew (PW).......215

DIRECT EXPENSES

PROJECT/PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

Principal-In-Charge.......c..cmmum $325
Senior Project/Program Manager.....310
Project/Program Manager...........-....260
Assistant Project/Program Manager 245
Senior Project Coordinator................. 185
Project Coordinator .....cowemre 155

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

Principal Construction Manager .....$315
Senior Construction Manager...... - 275
Senior Resident Engineer.................. 250
Resident ENginear ... 240
Structure Representative.........o. 235
Construction Manager.........co.. 220
Assistant Resident Engineer............... 200

Sr. Construction Inspector (PW} ........ 175

Construction Inspector (PW) ............ 168
Office Administrator............ 130
TECHNICAL SUPPORT

CADD Manager....... e $200
Supervising Technician ... 170
Senior TechniCian ... 160
Engineering Technician.......u. 125
ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

Senior Management Analyst
Management Analyst. ...

IT Techmician.....commmnn .
Graphics/Visualization Specialist...... 150
Administrative Assistant..........ooo.. 100

GOVERNMENT SERVICES

City Engineer......... R e LR $250
Deputy City ENgineer ... 225
Assistant City Engineer..........c. 215
Plan Check Engineer. .. ... 190
Permit ENGINEE. ..o e msrmsnns 185
City InSpector. ... e 185
Senior City Inspector (PW) .o 195
City Inspector (PW) . ececcrerssann 185
Principal Stormwater Specialist......... 180
Senior Stormwater Specialist............ 170
Stormwater Specialist ... 160
Stormwater Technician ... 140
Building Official..............coceverveeersverscin 220
Senior Building Inspector..........c... 235
Building Inspector ... 165
PIanming Direetor. ... 225
Senior City PIanNner ..o 205
Assistant Planner ... 195
Senior Grant Wrter. ..o 180
Grant WILET ... crmsamissssessms 170
Associate Grant Writer ..o 150
Assistant Grant Writer ... ..o 130

Use of outside consultants as well as copies, blueprints, survey stakes, monuments, computer plots, telephone, travel (out of area)
and all similar charges directly connected with the work will be charged at cost plus fifteen percent (15%). Mileage will be charged
at the current federal mileage reimbursement rate.

PREVAILING WAGE RATES

Rates shown with Prevailing Wage “(PW)" annotation are used for field work on projects subject to federal or state prevailing
wage law and are subject to increases per DIR.

ANNUAL ESCALATION

Standard fee rates provided for each classification are subject to 3.5% annual escalation or the most recent US Bureau of Labor
Statistics Consumer Price Index, whichever is higher.

OVERTIME

Overtime for nan-exempt employees will be charged at 1.5 x hourly rate; overtime for exempt employees and ather classification

will be charged at 1 x hourly rate.

49



LD

B L Ww.u.. nu _‘ﬂ -1 a.._......._u.l,w.mr.lm.,..q S

; _.—. ,m m - m ‘..ul..m. — L.m* ; ; n ....~. : - !. i. — £ _a_. = "sz ..z. .nu - .B. .E, R .n:...:..w. - aa,mmmm ...... 3
A i SHHBEE I

Mmm_ m m_:_T?L_:ZI::::M__:;::_%

(O ERR R R S SiNiARe
TR . uuﬁ# o W

uonsinboy Aepn-Jo-36ry - ssedAg au) junuy Jamas uoBumsem
PIOSIA SIHAIRS APUNUILIOD J]|NOLSED



SCOPE OF WORK

ScoPE oF WORK

Associated Right of Way Services, Inc. {AR/WS) will provide right of way services to MNS Engineers, Inc. (Client) for
the Castroville Community Services District’s (District) Washington Sewer Line Bypass Project.

The subject properties are identified as:

m“ OWNER ACQUISITION TYPE

030-141-022 Salvador Alvarez Permanent Easement and TCE
2 030-141-023 Salvador Alvarez Permanent Easement and TCE
3 133-143-016 Vegetable Ranches LLC Permanent Easement and TCE

ASSUMPTIONS:

—+ Parcel Nos. 1 & 2 represent one |arger parcel and will be included in one appraisal report.
—+ This project will not use federal funds.

—+ There are no impacts to existing buildings or structures, and only minor impacts to site improvements such
as gravel and fencing.

~+ Acquisitions from Parcel Nos. 1 & 2 will not impact or require acquisition of any mobile homes.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT — GENERAL CONSULTATION

e Establish work process with Client and schedule, manage and coordinate all real estate functions.
e On-going consultation, meetings and recurring project management duties.
* Coordinate with Client, District, appraiser, property acquisition agent and legal counsel.

»  Assistance with analyzing various courses of action. Work with Client and District to resolve problems and
recommend solutions.

s Contract management, budget monitoring and control, and project reporting.
» |mplementation and compliance with applicable state laws and regulations.
e Maintaining accurate records. Monitor work plan and work flow.
DELIVERABLES
¥ Project status report spreadsheets.
APPRAISAL
s Appraisals to be delivered to Client and District staff as directed.

e The initial appraisal budget assumes there are no damages to the subject remainder parcels due to the
propased acquisitions and/or the construction of the project. Should it be determined there are damages,
additional services will be billed on an hourly basis following a discussion with the Client and amendment to
our agreement.

e Appraisals to be prepared in accordance with California Eminent Domain Law, California Government Code
Section 7260 et seq., and the Uniform Standards of Professional Appraisal Practice requirements, except as
jurisdictionally exempt.

e The owner or a designated representative will be invited by the appraiser to accompany him/her during the
inspection of the property.

o Appraisals to be prepared in an Appraisal Report format in accordance with Uniform Standards of
Professional Appraisal Practice, Standard Rule 2-2.

(&7
Y

MNS ENGINEERS, INC. | WASHINGTON SEWER TRUNK LINE Bypass PROJECT | 1



ScoPE OF WORK

Appraisal is for the “Fair Market Value” of the property as per California Code of Civil Procedure, Section
1263.320.

The appraiser will issue the necessary public acquisition informational brochure to all owners.

The market value of the property taken will not include any increase or decrease in the value of the property
that is attributable to any of the following:

—+ The project for which the property is taken;
- The eminent domain proceeding in which the property is taken;
~» Any preliminary actions of the acquiring authority relating to the taking of the property.

If revisions are made to the property or assignment requirements during the appraisal process or upon
completion of the report, appraisal time to address these revisions will be billed on an hourly basis in
accordance with the AR/WS Fee Schedule. (Optional Service)

DELIVERABLES

¥ Draft Notice of Decision to Appraise for approval.
¥ Appraisal Report.

CLIENT/DISTRICT OBLIGATIONS

s Legal descriptions and plat maps.
s Design information and construction plans,
= Current title reports for each ownership.

* Environmental reports, if available.

NEGOTIATIONS / ACOUISITIONS

ARWS

AR/WS to prepare acquisition documents. Said documents include, but are not limited to: offer letter,
appraisal summary statement and summary of the basis for just compensation, summary statement
pertaining to the acquisition of real property or an interest therein, purchase agreement, deed, and public
acquisition brochure. AR/WS will initiate and maintain individual acquisition files. All acquisition documents
to receive District’s written approval as to form prior to use in the field.

AR/WS will negotiate to acquire permanent easements and temporary construction easements as identified
by the Client. We are assuming there will be negotiations with up to 2 property owners and no lessees.

All discussions for the acquisition of property or an interest therein will be directed to result in the payment
of just compensation.

If settlement with owners is reached pursuant to the District approved appraisal or District approved
administrative settlement, AR/WS will prepare a Memorandum of Settlement for transmittal to District,

reviewing the issues. This memorandum will require District written approval before implementation of any
settlement agreement.

AR/WS will make every reasonable effort to acquire property on behalf of the District expeditiously through
agreement with its owner and to avoid litigation. This may necessitate greater levels of effort in the
negotiations phase and, where appropriate, should continue after eminent domain has been initiated.
District will provide ongoing feedback to AR/WS as to authorization for settlements.

AR/WS will establish a process of coordinating escrow closings and reviewing escrow instructions. Where
there are escrow closings, preparation of escrow instructions will be completed by title company. Approval

MNS ENGINEERS, INC, | WASHINGTON SEWER TRUNK LINE BYPASS PROJECT | 2

=52



SCOPE OF WORK

of conditions of title and escrow instructions, including but not limited to, “subject to” title exceptions, will
be done by District.

s |f agreement with all owners cannot be reached, AR/WS will advise District that negotiations have reached
an impasse. The District will consider scheduling of an action in eminent domain including the required public
necessity hearing. AR/WS will provide condemnation support as needed and requested, budget allowing.

DELIVERABLES

¥ Draft Acquisition Documents for approval.
¥ Memorandum of Settlement and Signed Agreement (upon settlement).
¥ Notice that negotiations have reached an impasse (if needed).
CLIENT/DISTRICT OBLIGATIONS
s Written appraval of all acquisition documents in a timely manner.
* Direction as to administrative settlements, negotiating authority and condition of title acceptance.
s Providing any formats to be used by AR/WS on District’s behaff.
+ Selection of title company.

s Review and approval of title company prepared escrow instructions.

ARWS

MNS ENGINEERS, INC. | WASHINGTON SEWER TRUNK LINE Bypass PROJECT | 3 IZJ’ o]
o



BUDGET ESTIMATE

1. Project Management 54,200
{Time Charged)
2. Appraisal Services $17,850
{Lump Sum}
3. Negotiation/Acquisition Services $15,750
(Time Charged)
Total $37,800

BUDGET NOTES

A budget of 537,800 is requested. Appraisal services are billed lump sum. All other services are billed on an hourly
basis in conformance with the attached AR/WS Fee Schedule. Estimated costs are based on preliminary information.
Variables not known on the date of this estimate or additional project information may impact scope and fees.

1

m MNS ENGINEERS, INC. | WASHINGTON SEWER TRUNK LINE Bypass PROJECT | 4



FEE SCHEDULE

AR/WS FEE SCHEDULE

CONSULTING CATEGORY RATE
Principal Consultant $275.00
Managing Consultant $225.00
Consultant (1l $170.00
Consultant Il $150.00
Consultant | $130.00
Right of Way Technician $105.00
Administrative Support $85.00
Appraisal Reports Lump Sum
Appraiser lIl (MAIl} (Hourly) $225.00
Appraiser |1 {Hourly) $205.00
Appraiser | (Hourly) $180.00
Subcontractors Cost + 10%

Preparation for Court Appearances $300.00

Depositions, Court Appearances, Arbitrations / Mediations,
Hearings, and Testimony $400.00

m MVINS ENGINEERS, INC. | WASHINGTON SEWER TRUNK LINE BYPASS PROJECT | 5 5 5



10.
11.

12.

13.

14,

15,

16.

ARWS

ASSUMPTIONS AND LIMITATIONS

AR/WS estimated budget assumes timely assignment by Client of all appraisals, acquisition parcels and relocation cases.
Deferring or “piece meal” assignments adds to level of effort and costs.

Client to provide written appraisal approval, Client to sign Offers of Just Compensation as reflected in the Appraisal
Summary Statement(s). Client letterhead to be used for offers and significant correspondence, including Notices of
Decision to Appraise and acquisition and relocation notices. Initiation of acquisition work assumes that Client has
secured any required environmental certification as well as any federal or state approvals to begin right of way services.
All services to be provided pursuant to the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real Property Acquisition Policies Act and
applicable state and federal laws, related guidelines and regulations,

Client to provide adequate appraisal maps, plat maps, construction plans, mitigation measures, preliminary title reports,
legal descriptions and deed sheets {for easements).

Unless noted otherwise, pre-acquisition activities for soliciting Permits to Enter for soils/testing/contract work, Rights
of Entry, Agreements for Possession and Use are not included.

Except for appraisals, which are typically charged lump sum; this is a “time charged” contract in accordance with the
AR/WS Fee Schedule. Material changes ta the contracted Scope of Work after services begin will add to the original
budget/contract amount. Material changes, for which AR/WS is not responsible, include, but are not limited to, addition
of new parcels, schedule changes, new and revised legislation, regulations, statutes or ordinances by any public entity
or legistature, extended negotiations, multiple vestings, title complications, relocation complications, hard to house
households, unrecorded claims, extended site searches, eminent domain actians, design changes, revised or updated
appraisals. This Agreement is not a guarantee of property rights requested or displacements completed for a fixed
budget amount. Unless otherwise agreed, preparation for or attendance at depositions, relocation appeals, expert
witness testimony or court appearances are not included in the budget.

Budget to be reviewed periodically. AR/WS may reapportion budget allocations amaong categories. Team composition
may be adjusted by AR/WS,

Escrow costs and title reports shall be paid by Client. Escrow instructions to be prepared by Title Company with AR/WS
coordination. Client to determine acceptable condition of title and what, if any, title exceptions to take “subject to”.
AR/WS to assist and consult as requested.

Upon written notice from Client, AR/WS will suspend, delay, orinterrupt all or a part of its services. In such event, AR/WS
will resume services upon written notice from Client. An extension of time and added costs will be mutually agreed
upon within a reascnable time following re-initiation of all or any part of services.

Client will give prompt notice to AR/WS whenever Client observes or becomes aware of any development that affects
the scope or timing of AR/WS’ services, or any defect in the work of AR/WS.

Unless otherwise noted, preparation of Caltrans Right of Way Certification documents is not included in the Scope of
Services.

AR/WS understands that construction and design plans are subject to some change. AR/WS will accommodate changes
in the property requirements, including number or parcels, acquisitions and relocations. Changes in proposed
acquisitions after appraisals have begun or negotiations/relocations have commenced will add time and expense to
assignments. The parties acknowledge that such revisions may add to costs.

AR/WS reviews and adjusts billing rates and fees from time to time, generally as of January 1% of each year, but no more
than once annually. Any rate adjustments will be reflected in the AR/WS monthly invoice.

Except for Client’s obligations to pay for services rendered, no liability will attach to either AR/WS or Client from delay
in performance or non-performance caused by circumstances or events beyond the reasonable contral of the party
affected, including, but not limited to, acts of God, fire, flood, explosion, war, request or intervention of a governmental
authority, court order, labor relations, accidents, unanticipated delays or inability to obtain materials, equipment, fuel
or transportation.

Once AR/WS has completed an appraisal, the fee for that appraisal is due and payable upon Client’s receipt of invoice.
If any formal or informal appraisal review requires additional appraisal services after AR/WS has completed an appraisal,
these additional appraisal services will be billed on a time-charged basis in accordance with the AR/WS Fee Schedule.
AR/WS submits invoices on a monthly basis. If AR/WS is a sub-consultant to a prime consultant, that prime consultant
agrees to bill its Client within thirty {30} calendar days of receipt of the AR/WS monthly invoice.

MNS ENGINEERS, INC, | WASHINGTON SEWER TAUNK LINE BYPASS PROJECT | 6




| CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY
: SERVICES DISTRICT

1 From the desk of

i Eric Tynan — General Manager

TO: CCSD Board of Directors
DATE: June 20, 2023

RE: Consider Approving MNS Proposal for Moss Landing Wastewater System
Rehabilitation Project Amendment Request No. 2

RECOMMENDATION;

Approve Amendment Request No. 2 for the Moss Landing Wastewater Systermn Rehabilitation
Project for $59,014.

SUMMARY:

MNS has taken the Moss Landing Wastewater System Rehabilitation Project thru the 60%
design stage, helped get a implementation grant for $500,000 used towards creating the plans
and documents necessary to apply for the full construction grant.

This cost amendment covers the completion of revisions to the technical studies and
Administrative Draft Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration as well as the increased cost
of the cultural resources records search and out-of-scope work related to the presence of two
known cuitural resources within the Area of Potential Effect.

Additional Planning and Design Effort: The Project contract was based on the decision to
replace Lift Station No. 2 force main in the existing alignment below the Elkhorn Slough Bridge.
During the planning phase of the Project, a decision was made to construct the replacement
for the force main on a planned pedestrian bridge being designed by the County of Monterey.
The Project Preliminary Engineering Report (PER) was finalized based on this decision, and
environmental permitting and design initiated. The County pedestrian bridge project
subsequently was placed on hold due to external forces, and a decision was made to return to
the original plan to replace the force main in the existing alignment below the Elkhorn Slough
Bridge. This change resulted in a required revision to the Final PER, as well as redesign efforts
to the Project plans. These changes resulted in additional coordination with the County of
Monterey and the pedestrian bridge designer, additional planning efforts to develop an
additional PER submittal, and changes to design document to realign the pipeline.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Additional costs of $59,014

1 -
\



q Committed to improving
people’s lives every day
June 16, 2023

Eric Tynan, General Manager
Castroville Community Services District
11499 Geil Street

Castroville, CA 95012

Subject: Professional Engineering Services - Moss Landing Wastewater System Rehabilitation Project
Amendment Request No. 2

Dear Mr. Tynan:

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this amendment request for additional services for the Moss Landing Wastewater
System Rehabilitation Project (Project) for the Castroville Cornmunity Services District {District).

Project Understanding

MNS is currently providing services to the District for the Project, which includes proposed impravements to Lift Station No.
1 - Struve Road, Lift Station No. 2 - Little Baja, Lift Station No. 3 — Sandholdt Road, Lift Station No. 4 — Potrero Road,
replacing/lining approximately 2,700 linear feet of existing 4-inch force main from Lift Station No. 2 crossing Elkhorn Slough
along State Route 1, replacing an 8-inch gravity sewer main from manhole 36 to Lift Station 3 on Sandholdt Road, replacing a
section of pipe from manhole 39 to manhole 38 on Sandholdt Road, and lining manholes 27-30 and 41-47.

Over the course of the Project, additional effort has been required, which was not included in the contracted Project scope.
These costs are related to additional project management efforts, additional planning and design efforts, and additional
environmental permitting work. Information documenting additional effort is provided as follows:

Additional Praject Management:

The MNS team budgeted for four formal meetings over the course of the Project. During advancement of the work, the need
for more frequent meetings was identified. To date, an estimated 40 meetings have been held to maintain forward progress
on the Project.

Additional Planning and Design Effort:

The Project contract was based on the decision to replace Lift Station No. 2 force main in the existing alignment below the
Elkhorn Slough Bridge. During the planning phase of the Project, a decision was made to construct the replacement for the
force main on a planned pedestrian bridge being designed by the County of Monterey. The Project Preliminary Engineering
Report (PER} was finalized based on this decision, and environmental permitting and design initiated. The County pedestrian
bridge project subsequently was placed on hold due to external forces, and a decision was made to return to the original plan
to replace the force main in the existing alignment below the Elkhorn Slough Bridge. This change resulted in a required
revision to the Final PER, as well as redesign efforts to the Project plans. These changes resulted in additional coordination
with the County of Monterey and the pedestrian bridge designer, additional planning effort to develop an additional PER
submittal, and changes to design document to realign the pipeline.

During preparation of the Draft, Final, and Revised Final PER, Lift Station No. 1 was proposed to be relocated to an alternate
location on the same private parcel as the existing lift station. Initial negotiations and a site visit were completed to review
the lift station placement. Subsequent to the initial negotiations, during preparation of the 30% Design, it was decided to
relocate Lift Station No. 1 to an alterative parcel, reinitiating negotiations for land acquisition.

Additional Environmental Permitting Effort:
MNS subconsultant, Rincon Consultants, Inc. (Rincon), is providing environmental services for the Project including

preparation of an Initial Study and Mitigated Negative Declaration {ISMND) for the project. With District concurrence, the
environmental was initiated based on the final PER. Following revision of the PER, a portion of the environmental work

8li £l Copitan Woy | Suite 130 » CIVIL ENGINEERING
5an Luis Cbispo, CA 8340 » CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
Mair: 805 767 0326 * LAND SURVEYING
WWW MNSENGINEERS.COM

5

8



fX) M Committed to improving
people’s lives every day

needed to be revised based on the force main realignment discussed above. These revisions incurred additional costs.
Rincon’s amendment request associated with this change is provided as an attachment to this amendment request.

Project Scope of Work

Due to the changes to the scope of the Project, MNS proposes to facilitate additional support services as described in the
following tasks.

Task 2 = Preliminary Engineering Report

Subtask 2.1 - Project Management

MNS will provide additional project management and meetings associated with preparation of the PER. These additional
services include up to 20 additional update meetings and preparation of meeting minutes/action items.

Subtask 2.2 - Preliminary Design Report

MNS will revise the Final Preliminary Engineering Report, and prepare a Revised Final Preliminary Engineering Report,
incorporating the modifications discussed above.

Task 3 - Plans and Specifications

Subtask 3.1 - Project Management
MNS will provide additional project management and meetings associated with preparation of design documents. These
additional services include up to 20 additional update meetings and preparation of meeting minutes/action items.

Subtask 3.6 — 30% Design
MNS will complete additional coordination with the County of Monterey and the pedestrian bridge designer, and revised

design documents to realign the pipeline alignment. Additionally, MNS will coordinate with private landowners to locate and
coordinate the design for Lift Station No. 1,

Task 4 = Environmental Documents

Subtask 4.2 - CEQA and Federal Cross Cutter Documentation
MNS subconsultant, Rincon, will update and revise environmental documents as required by the alignment change at the
Elkhorn Slough Bridge. A detailed amendment request for Rincon’s additional services is provided as an attachment.

Compensation

NS proposes to perform the services described herein for a not-to-exceed fee estimate of $59,014. A detailed fee proposal
spreadsheet is provided as an attachment. All fees are in accordance with the 2023 MNS Standard Fee Schedule, also included
as an attachment.

ail Bl Capitan Way | Suita 130 » CWIL ENGINEERING
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 » CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
Main: 805 787 0326 * LAND SURVEYING .
WWW MNSENGINEERS COM B

. J

9



/-\> MNS Committed to improving
people's lives every day
Closing

Thank you for the opportunity to submit this amendment proposal. We are excited and look forward to continuing work with
the District. Please feel free to contact me at 805.722.2734 or npanofsky@mnsengineers.com with any questions you may
have about this submittal. Thank you for your consideration.

Sincerely,
MNS Engineers, Inc.

AL p

Nick Panofsky, PE
Principal Engineer
Attachments:

MNS Fee Schedule

MNS Fee Spreadsheet
Rincon Amendment Proposal

81l £ Copitan Way | Suite 130 » CIVIL ENGINEERING
San Luis Obispo, CA 93401 » CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT
Main; 805 767 0326 * LAND SURVEYING

WWW.MNSENGINEERS.COM O

=5



OMNS

2023 STANDARD SCHEDULE OF FEES

ENGINEERING

Principal Engineer ...
Lead ENGiNEr ........wweimimmmmsismsmsssnenses
Supervising Engineer.............

Senior Project Engineer............co..... 225
Project ENgineer. .. ccanienn 200
Associate Engineer ... 180
Assistant ENGINeer.........mn 165
SURVEYING

Principal SUrVeyor ...
Lead SUNVEYOT ..o ersrerscsmsasrssssssesenns
SUPErvising SUNVeYOT ........vvccrmmmmmsenns

Senior Project SUrveyor ... 200
Project SUrVaYOr. .. s 175
Associate Project SUrveyor.....u. 165
Assistant Project Surveyor........w. 150
Party Chief (PW)..eeecresnresmssssnnneenes 180
Chainperson (PW) ... 150

One-Person Survey Crew (PW).......... 215

DIRECT EXPENSES

PROJECT/PROGRAM MANAGEMENT

Principal-In-Charge.......ccooereeeuuenmees $325
Senior Project/Program Manager.....310
Project/Program Manager ... 260
Assistant Project/Program Manager 245
Senior Project Coordinator................ 185
Project Coordinator ... ..eereceeecpereene 155

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT

Principal Construction Manager .....$315
Senior Construction Manager............ 275
Senior Resident Engineer............
Resident ENGINger.......cummererismsnsnens
Structure Representative...........ccon..
Construction Manager ... e
Assistant Resident Engineer.................
Sr. Construction Inspector (PW) ....... 175

Construction Inspector (PW) ............ 168
Office Administrator.. ... 130
TECHNICAL SUPPORT

CADD Manager ... $200
Supervising Technician ... 170
Senior TEChNICIAN ... srrssecsrnns 160
Engineering TechniCian. ... 125
ADMINISTRATIVE SUPPORT

Senior Management Analyst............$185
Management ANalYSt........umemnn 155
IT Technician 140
Graphics/Visualization Specialist....... 150
Administrative Assistant........w.w. 100

GOVERNMENT SERVICES

City Engineer $250
Deputy City ENGINEer ... eemmmrmreceenns 225
Assistant City ENgineer.....coneens 215
Plan Check Engineer.......ccecenn 190
Permit ENgineer. ... 185
City Inspector 185
Senior City Inspector (PW) ..o 195
City Inspector (PW} e 185
Principal Stormwater Specialist.......... 180
Senior Stormwater Specialist............170

Stormwater Specialist.........oeeen.
Stormwater Technician

Building Official

Senior Building Inspector..........ce... 235
Building INSPeCtOr ........cuvmurmerresmerars 165
Planning Director. ..o 225
Senior City Planner .........omsiians 205
Assistant PlaRNEr ...........ovwmmissirnn 195
Senior Grant WIer ..o 180
Grant Writer 170
Associate Grant Writer ... 150

Assistant Grant Writer

Use of outside consultants as well as copies, blueprints, survey stakes, monuments, computer plots, telephone, travel (out of area)
and all similar charges directly connected with the work will be charged at cost plus fifteen percent (15%). Mileage will be charged
at the current federal mileage reimbursement rate.

PREVAILING WAGE RATES

Rates shown with Prevailing Wage "(PW)" annotation are used for field work on projects subject to federal or state prevailing
wage law and are subject to increases per DIR,

ANNUAL ESCALATION

Standard fee rates provided for each classification are subject to 3.5% annual escalation or the most recent US Bureau of Labor
Statistics Consumer Price Index, whichever is higher.

OVERTIME

Overtime for non-exempt employees will be charged at 1.5 x hourly rate; overtime for exempt employees and other classification

will be charged at 1 x hourly rate.

61



p6T'sTS

cﬂw ‘81%

[B303qNS ¢ §Se)

e s love (RS

(£300qNS € {521

[ S ——

leimgns

[ =

dmjiep o4LST YUM
sasuadxy ajgessnquipy

IV 7B SIS0 JUEjNSucIns |ejol |

51507 924n0S9Y SNW 12301,

668'61$ G68'6TS$
668°61% | 668'61%
O L)
e =
03 0%
0 0
0% 0%
0% 0%
-f 2
E | 8
4
g
14
g
2

VLINSNOJBNS

ot
)

frdrdrdiy ]

(034 2r s

118

[30]-qnS

EHHH
fe===l

Hrﬁﬁ ]

12303GNS # }¥sel
UOoRUHUMo huﬁ_._u 55047 _Euuuu_ pue ¥yaId '

| 1eIoians € sse)
ubis3q %0¢E 7€

EmEmmu:mz Palold T e

[ejIGns Z Hsel
Moday UbjsaQ ARUIWIRL] 7'Z

T T T

EmEumm:mz Ilolg 1

4] _.|_3H;n.b|.m_| &l

B =
[-] -]
g B
= =
] g | & m 3
S s =1 3 3
g B iy = g
=3 T L=} =) =]
B o 35 o 3
e [1] 3
@ ] 2 d
W o
g | 8
2 z
g |2
ONIYEINISNT Wd

"ON JUSWpUSWY 193[0d uoneyjiqeysy WwalsAs Jajemalsep buipue ssop

PISIF SSIIAIRS AJUNLWILIOYD) B|IACISED)



Rincon Consultants, Inc.

2511 Garden Road, Suite C-250
Monterey, California 33940

a11 333 0310

info@rinconconsultants.com
www. ringconconsultants.com

August 10, 2022
Project No: 20-10732

Nick Panofsky, PE, Lead Engineer
MNS Engineers, Inc.

811 El Capitan Way, Suite 103
San Luis Obispo, California 93401

Via email: npanofsky@mnsengineers.com

Subject: Proposal for Additional Services for the Moss Landing Wastewater System Rehabilitation
Project, Castroville Community Services District

Dear Mr. Panofsky:

Rincon Consultants, Inc. (Rincon) is submitting this proposal to augment our existing scope of work for
providing environmental consulting services for the proposed Moss Landing Wastewater System
Rehabilitation Project. Since initiation of our current scope of work and approval of the Project
Description, the project design has been modified in two key ways:

1. The design plan for the Lift Station No. 2 Force Main has been modified from the original plan
for attachment of a new pipeline to the County of Monterey’s pedestrian bridge over Elkhorn

Slough to replacement of the existing pipeline along its current alignment attached to the State
Route 1 bridge over Elkhorn Slough.

2. Temporary dewatering activities during construction have been determined to be necessary at
Lift Station Nos. 1, 3, and 4 and Pipe Repair P-1, which require some additional areas of
disturbance and additional project activities not previously considered (e.g., groundwater
discharge, use of a drill rig).

Prior to these design changes, Rincon had completed most of the analysis for the technical studies and
Administrative Draft Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration using the approved Project
Description. As a result, revisions to the technical studies and Administrative Draft Initial Study-
Mitigated Negative Declaration are necessary to account for these project design changes. In addition,
the direct cost of the cultural resources records search from the Northwest Information Center
increased from our original estimate of $1,000 ($1,150 with Rincon’s standard 15 percent mark-up) to
$2,572 (52,958 with Rincon’s standard 15 percent mark-up) due to the substantial number of previously
completed cultural resources studies and previously recorded cultural resources and the need to
provide the full records and maps for every resource within or adjacent to the project’s area of potential
effect to satisfy State Water Resources Control Board requirements. Furthermore, due to the presence
of two known cultural resources within the Area of Potential Effect for the project, Rincon is required to
update the Department of Parks and Recreation Series 523 forms for these resources and evaluate
project impacts to these resources in the Historic Properties Identification Report for it to meet State
Water Resources Control Board requirements.

Environmental Sciwmaliszsis Plannars Engindaers

I -

(A



Castroville Community Services District
Moss Landing Wastewater System Project

This cost amendment covers the completion of revisions to the technical studies and Administrative
Draft Initial Study-Mitigated Negative Declaration as well as the increased cost of the cultural resources
records search and out-of-scope work related to the presence of two known cultural resources within
the Area of Potential Effect. The estimated additional cost to complete this work scope is $19,899, which
would increase our existing budget of 594,281 to $114,180.

The proposed scope of work is fully negotiable to meet the needs of MNS and Castroville Community
Services District. This offer for professional services will remain in effect for a period of 30 days from the
date of this proposal. All work would be performed in accordance with our existing contract dated
November 22, 2021,

Sincerely,
Rincon Consultants, Inc.

eglanflones
Senior Environmental Planner / Project Manager  Principg

Annaliese Miller M

You can authorize Rincon Consultants, Inc. to proceed with the additional services by signing below.

Page 2

[



CCSD Board of Directors
DATE: June 20, 2023

RE: Consider Approving Pedestrian Overpass Maintenance “Landscaping”
Agreement with Department of Transportation Referred to as “State”

RECOMMENDATION;

Approve the agreement as written with bollards and other landscaping references
deleted. The only services CCSD would be providing are mural maintenance,
graffiti removal and existing lighting maintenance.

SUMMARY:

North County Park & Recreation District has agreed to take on most of the
“l.andscaping and Parklet Maintenance” as CCSD is ill equipped and does not

have the time or resources to take on the additional aspects the State was asking
for.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Costs of less than $2,000

1|Page



April 21, 2023
Geil Sureet Ped OC Clean California Project 05-1P533
Mon-156-R1.4

PEDESTRIAN OVERPASS MAINTENANCE ( LANDSCAPE) AGREEMENT
WITH THE CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT

THIS AGREEMENT is made effective this day of , 20__, by and between
the State of Cadlifornia, acting by and through the Department of Transportation,
hereinafter referred to as “STATE” and ithe Castrovile Community Services District;
hereinafter referred to as "CCSD” and collectively referred to as "PARTIES”.

1.

The PARTIES hereto mutually desire o identify the maintenance responsibilities of
CCSD for newly constructed or revised improvements within STATE's right of way.

This Agreement addresses CCSD responsibility for the Clean California Project
features lighting & graffiti including on bridge murals (collectively the
"LANDSCAPING”) placed within State Highway right of way on State Route 156,
as shown on Exhibit A, attached to and made a part of this Agreement.

Maintenance responsibilities that include, but are not limited to, inspection,
providing emergency repair, replacement, and maintenance, (collectively
hereinafter "MAINTAIN/MAINTENANCE") of LANDSCAPING as shown on said
Exhibit "A.”

The degree or extent of maintenance work to be performed, and the standards,
therefore, shall be in accordance with the provisions of Section 27 of the Streetfs
and Highways Code and the then current edition of the State Maintenance
Manual.

CCSD agrees, at CCSD expense, to do the following:

5.1. CITY/COUNTY contractors will be required to obtain an Encroachment Permit
prior to the start of any work within STATE's right of way.

5.2, CCSD shall ensure that LANDSCAPED areas designated on Exhibit "A" are
provided with adequate scheduled routine MAINTENANCE necessary to
MAINTAIN a neat and attractive appearance.
5.2.1.To expeditiously MAINTAIN, replace, repair or remove from service any

LANDSCAPING system component that has become unsafe or unsightly.

5.3.CCSD shall ensure LANDSCAPING within the Agreement limits provides for
removal of dirt, debris, graffiti, and any deleterious item or material on or
about the LANDSCAPING in an expeditious manner.

5.4.To remove LANDSCAPING and appurtenances and restore STATE owned
areas to a safe and aftractive condition acceptable o STATE In the event this
Agreement is ferminated as set forth herein.

ke

]



. April 21, 2023
Geil Sireet Ped OC Clean California Project 05-1P533
Mon-156-R1.4

6. STATE may provide CCSD with timely written notice of unsatisfactory conditions
that require correction by the CCSD. However, the non-receipt of notice does not
excuse CCSD from maintenance responsibilities assumed under this Agreement.

7. STATE shall Issue encroachment permits to CCSD and CCSD contractors at no cost
fo them.

8. LEGAL RELATIONS AND RESPONSIBILITIES:

8.1. Nothing within the provisions of this Agreement s intended to create duties or
obligations to or rights in third parties not party 1o this Agreement, or affect the
legal liability of either PARTY to this Agreement by imposing any standard of
care respecting the design, construction and maintenance of these STATE
highway improvements or CCSD facllities different from the standard of care
imposed by law.

8.2.If during the term of this Agreement, CCSD should cease to MAINTAIN the
LANDSCAPING_to the satisfaction of STATE as provided by this Agreement,
STATE may either undertake to perform that MAINTENANCE on behalf of CCSD
at CCSD’s expense or direct CCSD to remove or itself rernove LANDSCAPING
at CC8D’s sole expense and restore STATE's right of way to its prior or a safe
operable condition. CCSD hereby agrees to pay said STATE expenses, within
thidy (30) days of receipt of biling by STATE. However, prior to STATE
performing any MAINTENANCE or removing LANDSCAPING, STATE will provide
written notice to CCSD to cure the default and CCSD will have thirty (30) days
within which to affect that cure.

8.3. Neither CCSD nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for any injury,
damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be
done by STATE under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction
arising under this Agreement. It is understood and agreed that STATE shall fully
defend, indemnify and save harmless CCSD and all of its officers and
employees from all claims, suits or actions of every name, kind and description
brought forth under. including. but not limited to, tortious, contractual, inverse
condemnaiion and other theories or assertions of liability occurring by reason
of anything done or omitted to be done by STATE under this Agreement with
the exception of those actions of STATE necessary to cure a noticed default
on the part of CCSD.

8.4, Neither STATE nor any officer or employee thereof is responsible for any injury,
damage or liability occurring by reason of anything done or omitted to be
done by CCSD under or in connection with any work, authority or jurisdiction
arising under this Agreement. It is understood and agreed that CCSD shall fully
defend, indemnify and save harmless STATE and all of iis officers and

ol



April 21, 2023
Geil Street Ped OC Clean California Project 05-1P533
Mon-156-R1.4

employees from all claims, suits or actions of every name, kind and description
brought forth under, including, but not limited to, fortious, contractual, inverse
condemnation or other theories or assertions of liability occurring by reason of
anything done or omitted to be done by CCSD under this Agreement.

8.5. PREVAILING WAGES:

8.5.1. Labor Code Compliance- If the work performed under this Agreement is
done under contract and falls within the Labor Code section 1720(a)(1)
definition of a "public works" in that it is construction, alteration,
demolifion, installation, or repair, or maintenance work under Labor
Code section 1771. CCSD must conform to the provisions of Labor Code
sections 1720 through 1815, and all applicable provisions of Californic
Code of Regulations found in Title 8, Chapter 8, Subchapter 3, Ardicles 1-
7. CCSD agrees to include prevailing wage requirements in its contracts
for public works. Work performed by CCSD'S own forces is exempt from
the Labor Code's Prevailing Wage requirements,

8.5.2.Requirements in Subcontracts - CCSD shall require ifs contractors to
include prevailing wage requirements in all subcontracts when the work
fo be performed by the subcontractor under this Agreement is a "public
works" as defined in Labor Code Section 1720(aX1) and Labor Code
Section 1771. Subcontracts shall include all prevailing wage
requirements set forth in CCSD's contracts.

9. INSURANCE - CCSD and its contractors shall maintain in force, during the term of
this agreement, a policy of general liability insurance, including coverage of
bodily injury liability and property damage liability, naming the STATE, its officers,
agents and employees as the additional insured in an amount of §1 million per
occurrence and $2 million in aggregate and $5 million in excess. Coverage shall
be evidenced by a cerlificate of insurance in a form satisfactory to the STATE that
shall be delivered to the STATE with a signed copy of this Agreement.

10.TERMINATION - This Agreement may be terminated by timely mutual written
consent by PARTIES, and CCSD’s failure to comply with the provisions of this
Agreement may be grounds for a Notice of Termination by STATE.

11.TERM OF AGREEMENT -This Agreement shall become effective on the date first
shown on Iis face sheet and shall remain in full force and effect uniil amended or
terminated at any fime upon mutual consent of the PARTIES or until ferminated by
STATE for cause.

PARTIES are empowered by Streets and Highways Code Section 114 & 130 io enter info
this Agreement and have delegated to the undersigned the authority to execute this

[

8



April 21, 2023
Geil Sureet Ped OC Clean California Project 05-1P533
Mon-156-R1.4

Agreement on behalf of the respective agencies and covenants to have followed all
the necessary legal requirements to validly execute this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the PARTIES hereto have set their hands and seals the day and
year first above written.

THE CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY STATE OF CALIFORNIA
SERVICES DISTRICT DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION
By:
President of the Board
Initiated and Approved
By: By:
District General Manager Deputy District Director
Maintenance District 5
ATTEST:
By:

Secretary to the Board

By:

District Counsel



.70

otst | comry | moutt o) +
0s| won | 156 Al4 z
LANDSCAPE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT
WITH CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
EXHIBIT "A"
GEIL ST PEDESTRIAN OC - SR 156
m SALIntS 3¢
Exist BIKE PATH : e
__.r : .t....... Y Ty b ... e i . ? ..,.....u.;.._..”........m R e— CALTRANS s\u-uuu
N AT = e e ser b g g0 e SO0 S e L ARG
L ] S | 'y, ; } B -
. s
ROUTE 156 C
- R C=2:0 L I
- o St
LEDERDS n_:.:.Lrl#a..IsIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIIII L
T H TEL |

[ ]  anta uamraimeo By ceso -

GEIL 5t o

LOCATION 1




Eric Tznan

From: SanitarySewer@waterboards.ca.gov

Sent: Friday, June 2, 2023 3:22 PM

To: eric@castrovillecsd.org

Subject; Sewer System Management Plan Certification Approved

Thank you for completing the Sewer System Management Plan certification.



STATE WATER RESOURCES CONTROL BOARD
1001 | Street, Sacramento, California 95814
ORDER WQ 2022-0103-DWQ

STATEWIDE WASTE DISCHARGE REQUIREMENTS
GENERAL ORDER FOR SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS

This Order was adopted by the State Water Resources Control Board on December 6, 2022.

This Order shall become effective 180 days after the Adoption Date of this General Order,
on June 5, 2023.

The Enrollee shall comply with the requirements of this Order upon the Effective Date of this

General Order.

This General Order does not convey any property rights of any sort or any exclusive privileges.
The requirements prescribed herein do not authorize the commission of any act causing injury
to persons or property, protect the Enrollee from liability under federal, state, or locai laws, nor
create a vested right for the Enrollee to continue the discharge of waste.

CERTIFICATION

1, Jeanine Townsend, Clerk to the Board, do hereby certify that this Order with all attachments

is a full, true, and correct copy of the Order adopted by the State Water Board on
December 6, 2022.

AYE: Chair E. Joaquin Esquivel
Vice Chair Dorene D’Adamo
Board Member Sean Maguire
Board Member Laurel Firestone
Board Member Nichole Morgan

NAY: None

ABSENT: None

ABSTAIN: None

C@'MA}CV\-U/J’ T%f/el/b for

Jeanine Townsend”
Clerk to the Board




STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

1. INTRODUCTION

This General Order regulates sanitary sewer systems designed to convey sewage. For
the purpose of this Order, a sanitary sewer system includes, but is not limited to, pipes,
valves, pump stations, manholes, siphons, wet wells, diversion structures and/or other
pertinent infrastructure, upstream of a wastewater treatment plant headworks. A
sanitary sewer system includes:

o Laterals owned and/or operated by the Enrollee;
o Satellite sewer systems; and/or

« Temporary conveyance and storage facilities, including but not limited to temporary
piping, vaults, construction trenches, wet wells, impoundments, tanks and diversion
structures.

Sewage is untreated or partially treated domestic, municipal, commercial and/or
industrial waste (including sewage sludge), and any mixture of these wastes with inflow
or infiltration of stormwater or groundwater, conveyed in a sanitary sewer system.
Sewage contains high levels of suspended solids, non-digested organic waste,
pathogenic bacteria, viruses, toxic pollutants, nutrients, oxygen-demanding organic
compounds, oils, grease, pharmaceuticals, and other harmful pollutants.

For the purpose of this General Order, a spill is a discharge of sewage from any portion
of a sanitary sewer system due to a sanitary sewer system overflow, operational failure,
and/or infrastructure failure. Sewage and its associated wastewater spilled from a
sanitary sewer system may threaten public health, beneficial uses of waters of the
State, and the environment.

This General Order serves as statewide waste discharge requirements and supersedes
the previous State Water Resources Control Board (State Water Board)

Order 2006-0003-DWQ and amendments thereafter. All sections and attachments of
this General Order are enforceable by the State Water Board and Regional Water
Quality Control Boards (Regional Water Boards). Through this General Order, the State
Water Board requires an Enrollee to:

» Comply with federal and state prohibitions of discharge of sewage to waters of the
State, including federal waters of the United States;

o Comply with specifications, and notification, monitoring, reporting and recordkeeping
requirements in this General Order that implement the federal Clean Water Act, the
California Water Code (Water Code), water quality control plans (including Regional
Woater Board Basin Plans) and policies;

+ Proactively operate and maintain resilient sanitary sewer systems to prevent spills;

» Eliminate discharges of sewage to waters of the State through effective
implementation of a Sewer System Management Plan;

« Monitor, frack, and analyze spills for ongoing system-specific performance
improvements; and

¢ Report noncompliance with this General Order per reporting requirements.

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

2.2

An Enrollee is a public, private, or other non-governmental entity that has obtained
approval for regulatory coverage under this General Order, including:

* A state agency, municipality, special district, or other public entity that owns and/or
operates one or more sanitary sewer systems:

o greater than one (1) mile in length (each individual sanitary sewer system);

o one (1) mile or less in length where the State Water Board or a Regional Water
Board requires regulatory coverage under this Order; or

» A federal agency, private company, or other non-governmental entity that owns
and/or operates a sanitary sewer system of any size where the State Water Board or
a Regional Water Board requires regulatory coverage under this Order in response

to a history of spills, proximity to surface water, or other factors supporting regulatory
coverage.

For the purpose of this Order, a sanitary sewer system includes only systems owned
and/or operated by the Enrollee.

REGULATORY COVERAGE AND APPLICATION REQUIREMENTS

Requirements for Continuation of Existing Regulatory Coverage

To continue regulatory coverage from previous Order 2006-0003-DWQ under this
General Order, within the 60-days-prior-to the Effective Date of this General Order,
the Legally Responsible Official of an existing Enrollee shall electronically certify the
Continuation of Existing Regulatory Coverage form in the online California Integrated
Water Quality System (CIWQS) Sanitary Sewer System Database. The Legally
Responsible Official will receive an automated CIWQS-issued Notice of Applicability
email, confirming continuation of regulatory coverage under this General Order. All

regulatory coverage under previous Order 2006-0003-DWQ will cease on the Effective
Date of this Order.

An Enrollee continuing existing regulatory coverage is not required to submit a new
application package or pay an application fee for enroliment under this General Order.
The annual fee due date for continued regulatory coverage from previous

Order 2006-0003-DWQ to this General Order remains unchanged.

A previous Enrollee of Order 2006-0003-DWQ that fails to certify the Continuation of
Existing Regulatory Coverage form in the online CIWQS database by the Effective Date
of this Order is considered a New Applicant, and will not have regulatory coverage for
its sanitary sewer system(s) until:

¢ A new application package for system(s) enrollment is submitted per section 2.2
(Requirements for New Regulatory Coverage) below; and

s The new application package is approved per section 2.2.2 (Approval of Application
Package (For New Applicants Only)).

Requirements for New Regulatory Coverage

No later than 60 days prior to commencing and/or assuming operation and maintenance
responsibilities of a sanitary sewer system, a duly authorized representative that

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

Bt

o



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

221,

2.2.2.

2.2.3.

maintains legal authority over the public or private sanitary sewer system is required to
enroll under this General Order by submitting a complete application package as
specified below and as provided in Attachment B (Application for Enrollment Form) of
this General Order.

Unless required by a Regional Water Board, a public agency that owns a combined
sewer system subject to the Combined Sewer Overflow Control Policy (33 U.S. Code
§ 1342(q)), is not required to enroll, under this Order, the portions of its sanitary sewer
system(s) that collects combined sanitary wastewater and stormwater.

Application Package Requirements

The Application for Enroliment package for new applicants must include the following
items:

* Application for Enrollment Form. The form in Attachment B of this General Order
must be completed, signed, and certified by a Legally Responsible Official, in
accordance with section 5.1 (Designation of a Legally Responsible Official) of this
General Order. If an electronic Application for Enrollment form is available at the

time of application, a new applicant shall submit its application form electronically;
and

» Application Fee. A fee payable to the “State Water Resources Control Board" in
accordance with the Fee Schedule in the California Code of Regulations, Title 23,
section 2200, or subsequent fee regulations updates.

The application fee for this General Order is based on the sanitary sewer system’s
threat to water quality and complexity designations of category 2C or 3C, which is
assigned based on the population served by the system. The current Fee Schedule
for sanitary sewer systems is listed under subdivision (a)(2) at the following website:
Fee Schedule (https://www.waterboards.ca.gov/resources/fees/water_quality/).

Approval of Application Package (For New Applicants Only)

The Deputy Director of the State Water Board, Division of Water Quality (Deputy
Director) will consider approval of each complete Application for Enroliment package.
The Deputy Director will issue a Notice of Applicability letter which serves as approved
regulatory coverage for the new Enrollee.

If the submitted application package is not complete in accordance with section 2.2.1
(Application Package Requirements) of this General Order, the Deputy Director will
send a response letter to the applicant outlining the application deficiencies. The
applicant will have 60 days from the date of the response letter to correct the application
deficiencies and submit the identified items necessary to complete the application
package to the State Water Board.

Electronic Reporting Account for New Enrollee

Within 30 days after the date of the Approval of Complete Application Package for
System Enroliment, a duly authorized representative for the Enroliee shall obtain a
CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database user account by clicking the “User
Registration” button and following the directions on the CIWQS Login Page

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 8, 2022



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

4.3.

5.2.

Discharge of Sewage Creating a Nuisance

Any discharge from a sanitary sewer system that creates a nuisance or condition of
pollution as defined in Water Code section 13050(m) is prohibited.

SPECIFICATIONS

Designation of a Legally Responsible Official

The Enrollee shall designate a Legally Responsible Official that has authority to ensure
the enrolled sanitary sewer system(s) complies with this Order, and is authorized to
serve as a duly authorized representative. The Legally Responsible Official must have
responsibility over management of the Enrollee’s entire sanitary sewer system, and
must be authorized to make managerial decisions that govern the operation of the
sanitary sewer system, including having the explicit or implicit duty of making major
capital improvement recommendations to ensure long-term environmental compliance.
The Legally Responsible Official must have or have direct authority over individuals
that:

¢ Possess a recognized degree or certificate related to operations and maintenance of
sanitary sewer systems, and/or

» Have professional training and experience related to the management of sanitary
sewer systems, demonstrated through extensive knowledge, training and
experience.

For example, a sewer system superintendent or manager, an operations manager, a
public utilities manager or director, or a district engineer may be designated as a Legally
Responsibie Official.

The Legally Responsible Official shall complete the electronic CIWQS “User
Registration” form (https://ciwgs.waterboards.ca.gov/ciwgs/newUser jsp). A Legally
Responsible Official that represents multiple enrolled systems shall complete the
electronic CIWQS “User Registration” form for each system.

The Enrollee shall submit any change to its Legally Responsible Official, and/or change
in contact information, to the State Water Board within 30 calendar days of the change
by emailing ciwgs@waterboards.ca.gov and copying the appropriate Regional Water
Board as provided in Attachment F (Regional Water Quality Control Board Contact
Information) of this General Order.

Sewer System Management Plan Development and Implementation

To facilitate adequate local funding and management of its sanitary sewer system(s),
the Enrollee shall develop and implement an updated Sewer System Management Plan.
The scale and complexity of the Sewer System Management Plan, and specific
elements of the Plan, must match the size, scale and complexity of the Enrollee’s
sanitary sewer system(s). The Sewer System Management Pian must address, at
minimum, the required Plan elements in Attachment D (Sewer System Management
Plan — Required Elements) of this General Order. To be effective, the Sewer System
Management Plan must include procedures for the management, operation, and
maintenance of the sanitary sewer system(s). The procedures must: (1) incorporate the

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

18

IJ



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

5.3.

5.4.

prioritization of system repairs and maintenance to proactively prevent spills, and
(2) address the implementation of current standard industry practices through available
equipment, technologies, and strategies.

For an existing Enrollee under Order 2006-0003-DWQ that has certified its Continuation

of Existing Requiatory Coverage, per section 2.1 (Requirements for Continuation of
Existing Requlatory Coverage) of this General Order:

Within six (6) months of the Adoption Date of this General Order:

e The Legally Responsible Official shall upload the Enrollee’s existing Sewer System
Management Pian to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database.

For a new Enrollee:

Within twelve (12) months of the Application for Enroliment approval date:

e The governing entity of the new Enrollee shall approve its Sewer System
Management Plan; and

» The Legally Responsible Official shall certify and upload its Sewer System
Management Plan to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database.

Certification of Sewer System Management Plan and Plan Updates

The Legally Responsible Official shall certify and upload its Sewer System Management
Plan and all subsequent updates to the online CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System
Database.

Sewer System Management Plan Audits

The Enrollee shall conduct an internal audit of its Sewer System Management Plan, and
implementation of its Plan, at a minimum frequency of once every three years. The audit
must be conducted for the period after the end of the Enrollee’s last required audit
period. Within six months after the end of the required 3-year audit period, the
Legally Responsible Official shall submit an audit report into the online CIWQS Sanitary
Sewer System Database per the requirements in section 3.10 (Sewer System
Management Plan Audit Reporting Requirements) of Attachment E1 of this General
Order.

Audit reports submitted to the CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database will be
viewable only to Water Boards staff.

The internal audit shall be appropriately scaled to the size of the system(s) and the
number of spills. The Enroliee’s sewer system operators must be involved in completing
the audit. At minimum, the audit must:

e Evaluate the implementation and effectiveness of the Enrollee's Sewer System
Management Plan in preventing spills;

¢ Evaluate the Enrollee’'s compliance with this General Order,;

» ldentify Sewer System Management Plan deficiencies in addressing ongoing spills
and discharges to waters of the State; and

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

18



STATEWIDE SANITARY SEWER SYSTEMS GENERAL ORDER

Initial Audit Period for Transition from 2-Year Audit Required in Previous
Order 2006-0003-DWQ to 3-Year Audit Required in this General Order

Audit Period Audit Due Date
An Enrollee e
previously A 3-year period starting from the end of :;’tgl:'gnsc;xo;n; nteh:r
regulated by Order |ast required 2-year Audit Period e y
2006-003-DWQ LA

Last required Audit Period start date of

August 2, 2021,

Example . ) February 1, 2025
Audit Period of August 2, 2021 through

August 1, 2024

Three-Year Ongoing Audit Period

Audit Period Audit Due Date

Within six months
after end of 3-year
Audit Period

A 3-year period starting from the end of

Each Enroliee last required Audit Period

5.5. Six-Year Sewer System Management Plan Update

At a minimum, the Enrollee shall update its Sewer System Management Plan every six

(6) years after the date of its last Plan Update due date. (For an Enrollee previousiy
regulated by Order 2006-0003-DWQ, the six-year period shall commence on the due

date identified in section 3.11 of Attachment E1 {Notification, Monitoring, Reporting and
Recordkeeping Requirements) of this Order. The Updated Sewer System Management

Plan must include:

« Elements required in Attachment D (Sewer System Management Plan — Required
Elements) of this Order;

e Summary of revisions included in the Pian update based on internal audit findings;
and

s Other sewer system management-related changes.

The Enrollee’s governing entity shall approve the updated Plan. The Legally
Responsible Official shall upload and certify the approved updated Plan in the online
CIWQS Sanitary Sewer System Database in accordance with section 3.11 (Sewer
System Management Plan Reporting Requirements) of Attachment E1 (Notification,

Monitoring, Reporting and Recordkeeping Requirements) of this General Order. During

the time period in between Plan updates, the Enrollee shall continuously document
changes to its Sewer System Management Plan in a change log attached to the Plan.

ORDER 2022-0103-DWQ December 6, 2022

21

-\I
G



TO: CCSD Board of Directors
DATE: June 20, 2023

RE: Consider Approving the Castroville Community Services District's Water
Shortage Contingency Plan

RECOMMENDATION;

Approve the Castroville Community Services District's Water Shortage
Contingency Plan.

SUMMARY

In 2018 the State passed requirements. Water systems must meet to deal with
water shortages brought on by the extended drought. In order to comply with
Water Code 10632sub(a)-(i) the District developed the Water Shortage
Contingency Plan mandated by the SWRCB. The plan lays out the triggers and
responses various scenarios and triggers to deal with water supply shortages.

FISCAL IMPACT:

Additional costs are undetermined at this time.

1|Page

-~}
o



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 03/16 23

CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT
WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN

1.0 INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

This Water Shortage Contingeney Plan is developed in compliance with California Water Code
Section 10632, Requirements of subsections {a)-(i) are identitied below and are accompanied by
the required elements and information.

The CASTROVILLE COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT (CCSD) obtains its water supply
from the Salinas Valley Groundwater Basin (SVGB). The SVGB is not adjudicated and provides
water for growers, municipalitics and other municipal and industrial uses in the Salinas Valtey.
Due to cumulative basin pumping, coastal aquilers are experiencing seawater intrusion. CCSD
continues o work with Monterey County Water Resources Ageney (MCWRA) in developing
plans to coordinate and encourage preservation of the SVGB aquifers by all municipal and
agricultural users.

In 201 1. CCSD added Well # 5 has improved system-wide reliability. making maximum use of
mubtiple aquifers.

CCSD is actively pursuing development of a Regional Water Supply Project. in partnership with
the Monterey County Water Resources Agency (MCWRA) and California-American Water
Company (CAWC). The Regional Project will develop desalinated water from the seawater-
intruded portion of the SVGB. This supply will meet current water demands within the CAWC
Monlerey service area and future water demands within the SVGB. The wells to be installed
within the intruded portions of the SVGB arc intended to capture scawater along the coast before
it can migrate to inland portions of the aquifer.  The project also includes a reeyeled water
component that will provide non-potable water for landscape irrigation within the MCWRA and
CAWC service areas.

One other coordinated cffort includes the Water Awareness Commitiee of Monterey County
(WAC). Through the WAC. representatives [rom several agencies throughout Monterey County
work together coordinating conservation and other water awareness efforts including education
programs, information booths for special events and public understanding of Monterey County
water challenges and opportunities.

California Water Code Section 10632(c) Actions to be undertaken by the urban water supplier
to prepare for, and implement during, a catastrophic interruption of water supplies, including
but not limited to, a regional power outage, an earthquake or other disaster.

I'he CCSD developed and adopted an Emergency Response Plan tor emergency and disaster
occurrences with guidelines and agreements for cooperative efforts with other State and local
agencies, as required by the State Health Department.  This Plan contains actions CCSD would
initiate in the event of a catastrophie reduction in its water supply.

2.0 STAGES OF ACTION

g0



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 0516 23

California Water Code Section 10632(a) Stages of action to be undertaken by the urban water
supplier in response to water supply shortages, including up to a 50 percent reduction in water
supply and an outline of specific water supply conditions which are applicable to each stuge.

The CCSD developed a five-stage Water Conservation Plan that includes two voluntary and
three mandatory stages. Table 1 gencratly deseribes the various stages. Specilic water supply
conditions applicable to cach stage. referred to as “triggering mechanisms™ herein. are discussed
in the next section.

Table 1: Water Conservation Stages and Reduction

Stage Demand Reduction Goal Type Program
Stage | 10% reduction Voluntary
Stage 2 15% reduction Valuntary
Stage 3 25% reduction Mandatory
Stage 4 35% reduction Mandatory
Stage 5 50%+ reduction Muandatory

Priorities for use of available water, based on California Water Code Chapter 3 are:
t. Health and Safety - interior residential and fire fighting

2. Commercial, Industrial. and Governmental - maintain jobs & cconoinic base

3. Existing Landscaping - especially trees and shrubs

4. New Demand - projects without permits when shortage declared

California Water Code Section 10632(b) An estimate of the minimum water supply available
during each of the next three water years based on the driest three-year historic sequence for
the agency’s water supply.

This requirement is oriented toward water supply systems that are primarily supplied via surface
waters and therefore can be directly affected by short-term fluctuations in hydrology i.c.. drought
conditions. CCSD’s total current water supply is produced through groundwater pumping from
the large SVGB., CCSD supply availability from this basin has not historically varied duc to
short-term hydrologic conditions.  The minimum water supply available within the driest three-
vear sequence is expected 1o mateh demands as discussed in the Modified Urban Water
Management Plan.

3.0 TRIGGERING MECHANISMS

The SVGB is currently the most important source of water for CCSD. In 2004, the CCSD's
groundwater withdrawals of about 780 acre-feet accounted for less than one percent (1%) ol the
estimated basin-wide annual extractions of roughly 350,000 acre-feet.  Given this relatively
small percentage. CCSD conservation and contingency management activities can play only a
small part within the SVGB. The foremost concern in developing appropriate triggers is
achieving the maximum practical protection of an adequate tong-term water supply of acceptable
quality for CCSD customers. To that end, triggering mechanisms should be tied io factors that.
direetly or indireetly, have the greatest potential effect on the quality and quantity of available
groundwater.

Two general types of threats could cause CCSD 10 experience water shortages:

i

1)

pemi



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 0516 23

t. Unanticipated catastrophic system failure due to an carthquake, terrorist attack or
sudden contamination of water supply. or

Chronic system shortage due 1o seawater intrusion reaching water supply wells in
concentrations such that those wells would have to be removed from service.

E\J

In the case of a catastrophic failure. the CCSD would assess the nature and extent of the failure.
and the General Manager would identify the appropriate Conservation Stage in accordance with
the expected level of water supply shortage. Should shortages be anticipated in amounts beyond
tifty percent of normal demands. emergency actions will be taken in accordance with the
CCSD’s Emergency Response Plan. including enacting emergency ordinances as may  be
required by CCSD Board of Directors.

The chronic system threat to CCSD's present water supplies is scawater intrusion, which has
occurred atong the coastal margin of the Salinas Valley in response to historic over-drafting of
the basin. Contamination from arsenic has also affected CCSD Well #5 and could pose
additional problems.  Although seawater intrusion has not yet affected the deep zone (900-Foot
Aquifer) of the SVGB (which is the source of supply for CCSD's Well No.3). it is possible that
continued extractions in the 900-Foot Aquifer could ultimately lead to contamination of these
water supplics by seawater. CCSD monitors the rate of seawater intrusion and plans to construct
a new well in the deep aquifter and develop alternative water resources that would be insulated
from intrusion. However, it is possible for intrusion to appear in a relatively short time span and
reduce overall supplies available. Consequently. the CCSD has structured this Water Shortage
Contingency Plan with the primary goal of reducing water supply demands to allow time for
alternative water supply measures. including the drilling of aliernate wells in areas unaffected by
intrusion and/or contamination. A specific  triggering mechanism  for various levels of
conservation is tied to concentrations of chlorides in CCSD wells . Chloride concentration is
directly related 1o the seawater intrusion problem, and are related 1o the overall basin viability as
a secure source of water supply.

Chloride concentration, which is the trigger {or the most advanced stages of conservation. is also
a key indicator of water quality degradation due to seawater intrusion. Tests for statistically
significant changes in chloride concentrations assist in the detection of the earliest stages of
intrusion and are appropriate indicators of a water supply emergency. In addition, CCSD
currently is investigating desalting Well #3 which was our most efficient well until Chlorides
exceeded 500 Mg/,

Lay



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 0516 23

TRIGGERING MECHANISMS FOR CONSERVATION STAGES

These Triggering mechanisms shall be interpreted as guidelines and are summarized in Table 2.
The Generat Manager and/or Board of Directors may impose any of the following conservation
stages based upon facts and circumstances which may not have been otherwise anticipated in this
plan.

Table 2 Conservation Level Triggering Mechanisms

Conservation Stage

and Shortage Level Triggering Mechanism

Stage One 1) system malfusnction resulting in up o 10% shortage

0-10% 2) increase in chlorides which do not threaten to exceed drinking water
Voluntary quality standard

Stage Two 1) system matfunction resulting in greater than 10% shortage

>10-25% 2) increase in chlorides which may threaten to exceed drinking water
Voluntary quality standard

Stage Three 1) system malfunction resulting in greater than 23% shortage

>25-35% 2} increase in chlorides which are expected to exceed drinking water quality
Mandatory standard

Stage Four 1) system maltunction resulting in greater than 33% shortage

>35-30% 2) increasc in chlorides which are expected to exceed drinking water quality
Mandatory standard

Stage Five 1) system malfunction resulting in greater than 50% shortage
>50% 2} increase in chlorides which are expected to exceed drinking water qualin
Mandatory standard

STAGE I: Up te 10% - Voluntary

Stage 1 conservation measures may be called for as a result of malfunction of all or portions of
the water system that reduces supplies by up to 10% on a daily. peak seasonal or annual basis. It
also may be called due to prolonged drought conditions and a need to focus public aitention on
water conservation.

Further triggering could also be based on:

1) detection of a statistically significant increase in chloride concentrations but
where such concentrations do not threaten to exceed the CA DHS ~Upper Level™
secondary (aesthetics) drinking water standard currently set at 500 mg/l at the
well(s) in question, or

STAGE 2: >10% to 25% -Voluntary

Stage 2 conservation measures may be calfled for due to malfunction or failure of all or portions
of the water system that reduces supplies by greater than 10% on a daily. peak scasonal or annual



CCSD Water Shortage Contingeney' Plan Adopted 051623

basis.
Further triggering could also be based on:

1) detection of a statistically significant increase in chloride concentrations where
such concentrations may threaten to exceed the CA DHS  ~Upper Level”
sccondary (aesthetics) drinking water standard currently set at 300 mg/l at the
well(s) in question, or

STAGE 3: >25% to 353% - Mandatory

Stage 3 conservation measures may be called for due to maifunction or tailure of all or portions
of the water system that reduces supplies by greater than 25% on a daily. peak scasonal or annual
basis.

Further triggering could also be based on:

1 detection of an increase in chloride concentrations where such concentrations are
expected to exceed the CA DHS ~Upper Level™ secondary (aesthetics) drinking
water standard currently set at 500 mg/l at the well(s) in question. or

STAGE 4: >35% to S0% - Mandaton

Stage 4 conservation measures may be called for due to malfunction or failure of alf or portions
of the water system that reduces supplies by greater than 33% on a daily. peak seasonal or annual
basis.
Further triggering could also be based on:
1) detection of an increase in chloride concentrations where such concentrations are
expected o exceed the CA DUHS ~“Upper Level™ secondary (aesthetics) drinking
water standard currently set at 500 mg/1 at the well(s) in question. or

STAGE 5: >50% - Mandatory

Stage 5 conservation measures may be called tor due to in maltunction or failure of all or
portions of the water system that reduces supplies by 50 % or more on a daily, peak scasonal or
annual basis,

Further triggering could also be based on:

1) detection of an increase in chloride concentrations where such concentrations are
expected to exceed the short term primary drinking water standard of 600 mg/l at
the well(s) in question. or

4.0 CONSERVATION REQUIREMENTS AND APPEAL PROCEDURES

The following are CCSD’s conservation requirements by customer type and stage and the appeal

f=3 - - b= ;
procedures, These requirements and procedures are adopted as part of CCSD’s Water Shortage
Contingency Plan.



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 051623

STAGE I: Up to 10% - Voluntary — Minimal Conservation Requirement

CCSD shall:
- notily all customers of the water shortage
- mail information to every customer and reasonably available potential water user
explaining the importance of significant water use reductions
- provide technical information to customers on ways to improve water use etficiency
- conduct media campaign to remind consumers of the need 1o save water
- publicize the showerhead. toilet rebate and other elficiency programs
- enforce mandatory restrictions on water waste as provided in CCSD Code. Chapter 21

STAGE 2: >10% to 25% -Voluntary — Moderate Conservation Requirement

In addition to the actions Hsted in Stage 1, CCSD shall call for voluntary reductions of up to 25%
for cach connection based on the average use during a base period proposed by the Water
Conservation Commission and adopted by CCSD’s Board of Directors,

STAGE 3: >25% to 35% - Mandatory — Severe Conservation Requirement

In addition to the actions hsted in Stage 1 and 2. CCSD shall establish mandatory annual
allotments for cach connection based on the average use during a base period proposed by the
CCSD’s Board of Directors. When Stage 3 vse reduction becomes necessary . administration and
enforcement of waier conservation rules becomes the major focus of CCSD. It necessary.
additional temporary personnel may be hired and special meetings Board of Directors may be
scheduled.

1. Each water service connection shall receive an allotted quantity of water. typically specified in
hundred cubic feet (heh) units per billing cycle, as calculated by the General Manager.

2. The Board of Directors may pass an emergency ordinance increasing the usage rate for potable
water in order to ensure stable revenues for operation and maintenance of CCSD.

3. As individual customers are notified of allotments. it is expected that many requests for
special consideration will be received. These petitions must be processed rapidiy. efficiently and
fairly. Every application for waiver must be heard. evaluated and acted upon by the District
General Manager as rapidly as possible.  Every action by the General Manager shall be referred
to CCSD’s Board of Directors for consideration. ‘FThe procedures {or appeal are defined. below.

4. No building permits will be issued or meters installed for new accounts that had not received
building permits before the ~“Severe Shortage™ was declared.

5. The following water use restrictions shall be imposed.

£

85



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Adopted 05716 23

Staoe

Type Use

Restriction

d

Landscape Irrigation for
Existing Landscapes.
inciuding Public Parks

Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:

(1) Landscape watering using sprinkler or irrigation systems
is permitted only two days per week, Addresses ending
in even numbers (0.2.4.6.8) may water on Mondavs and
Thursdays. Addresses ending in odd numbers (1.3.3.7.9)
may water on Tuesdays and Fridayvs, 1 there is no sireet
address, or if more than one street address is associated
with a contiguous property, the trrigation davs are
Wednesday and Saturday,

(2) Manual landscape watering with a soaker hose, handheld
hose or watering can/bucket is allowed on any dav.

LY ]

Landscape lrrigation for
New Landscapes.
including Public Parks

Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:

(1) Landscape watering is permitted to maintain adequate
arowth on newly installed landscapes. for a period
generally up to five (3) weeks. Property owners must
notify the Distriet of the address where new landscape is
installed and the date of installation,

(2) Following the mitial establishment period, landscape
walering using a sprinkler or irrigation svstem is
permitted only on the days associated with the current
conservation stage in effect.

LS

Golf Courses, Athletic
Fields

Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:

(1) All landscape out-of-play arcas such as may be found
around a clubhouse or entryway shall follow the general
landscape irvigation restrictions.

(2} All in-play areas may be irrigated during the standard
watering hours (before 10:00 a.m. or afier 3:00 p.m.).

(3) Course operators shall implement a ten (10) pereent
reduction in irrigation water use.

[F]

Hotels. motels and bed
and breakfasts

Hotels, motels and B&B's must offer and clearly notify guests of
a “limited linen/towel exchange™ program.

L)

Swimming pools, hot
tubs

Initially filling new and existing swimming pools prohibited.
Draining and refilling existing swimming pools permitted only if
repairing a pool leak or repairing. maintaining or replacing a pool
component that has become hazardous. All pools and wbs shall
be covered whest not in use 1o reduce evaporation.

"d

Industrial and
Commercial

Reduction of water use by any means is encouraged. Compliance
with mandatory demand reduction measures is required for
outdoor water uses including landscape irrigation. swimming
pools. and vehiele washing.




CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Aduopted 05716 23

Stage Type Use Restriction
3 Vehicle and Equipment | Non-commercial washing of vehicles and mobile equipment (e.g..
Washing washing vehicle at a residence) is permitted only on assigned

landscape watering days during landscape watering hours (before
10:00 a.m. or atter 5:00 p.m.).

Fleet managers are encouraged to only wash those vehicles as is
necessary for health and safety.

¥

3 Heavy Construction The use of potable water for dust control shall be reduced o the
areatest extent possible.

STAGE 4: >35% to 50% - Mandatory — Critical Conservation Requirement

In addition to the actions listed in the previous stages, CCSD shall establish alloiments based
upon a 35% -30% curtailment of water use.  All new and previous appeals for waiver shall be
evaluated by field audit and shall be reheard by the Water Conservation Commission. if
necessary, upon recommendation of CCSD stalt. Water rates may be increased by the Board of
Direciors.

The lollowing water use restrictions shall be imposed.

Stage Type Use Restriction
4 Landscape [rrigation for | Landscape watering shall be subject to the following himits:

Existing Landscapes.

. . : 1) Landscape watering using sprinkler or irnigation systems
including Public Parks = = = 4

is permitted only one day per week. Addresses ending in
numbers 0 or | may water on Mondays. Addresses
ending in numbers 2 or 3 may water on Tuesdays.
Addresses ending in numbers 4 or 5 may water on
Wednesdays. Addresses ending in numbers 6 or 7 may
water on Thursdays. Addresses ending in numbers 8 or 9
may water on Fridays. If there is no street address. or if
more than one street address is associated with a
contiguous property. the irrigation day is Wednesday.

Maaual landscape watering with a soaker hose. handheld hose or
watering can/bucket is allowed on any dav.

4 Landscape Irrigation for [ The installation of new landscapes irrigated with potable water is
New Landscapes. discouraged.

USRI RO e Landscape watering shall be subject 1o the Tollowing limits:

(1) Landscape watering is permitted three (3) days a week 10
maintain adequate growth on newly instatled landscapes.
for a period generally up to five (3) weeks. Watering
day s for new landscapes are Tuesday. Thursday and
Saturday. Property owners must notify the District of the
address where new landscape is installed and the date of
instaliation.

Following the initial establishment period. landscape watering




COSD Water Shortage Contingeney Plan Adopted B3'16/23

— e g et

Stage Type Use Restriction

using a sprinkler or irrigation sy stem 18 permitied only on the
days associated with the current conservation stage in etfect.

4 Golf Courses / Athletic | Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:

Fields ! .
(1) All landscape out-of-play arcas such as may be found

around a clubhouse or entnyway shall tfollow the general
landscape irrigation restrictions,

(2) All in-play arcas may be irvigated during the standard
: watering hours (before 10:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m.).

Course operators shall implement a twenty (20) percent reduction
n irrigation waler use.

L4 Hotels. motels and bed Hotels. motels and B&B s must limit linen/towel changes to once
and breaktasts eveny two (2) nights or for the entire stay, whicheyer is shorter.
except for healih and safety.

4 Swimming pools. hot [nitially filling new and existing swimming pools prohibited.
tubys Draining and retilling existing swimining pools permitted only il
repairing a pool leak or repairing, maintaining or replacing a poo! |
component that has become hazardous. All pools and tubs shad)
be covered when not in use to reduce evaporation.

4 | Vehiele and Equipment | Non-commercial washing of vehicles and mobile equipmen {e.g..
| Washing washing vehicle at a residence) is pennitted only on assigned

, landscape watering day s during landscape watering hours (before

. [0:00 a.m. or after 5:00 p.m.).

Fleet managers are encouraged to only wash those vehicles as is
necessary for health and safety.

4 Industrial and Reduction of water use by any means is encouraged. The Board
commercial of Directors may establish mandatory use reduction targets. if
needed.

Compliance with mandatory demand reduction measures is
required for owtdoor water uses including landscape irrigation.
swimming pools. and schicle washing.

4 Heavy Construction The use of potable water for dust control shall be reduced 1o the
areatest extent possible,

STAGE 5: >50% - Mandatory — Emergency Conservation Requirement

Appropriate 3% water shortage allotments shall be calculated and noticed to customers.
Appropriatc administration and enforcement of this stringent program shall be the highest
priority of CCSD activity. All resources of CCSD will be directed toward improvement and
increase of water supply to the system. Water rates may be turther increased by the Board of
Directors.

‘The foliowing water use restrictions shall be imposed:



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan

Adopted 05 1623

Stage Type Use Restriction
5 Landscape Irrigation for | Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:
Existing Landscapes. - . . o
. LS e E Landscape watering with potable water is prohibited.
including Public Parks
5 Landscape Trrigation for | Landscape watering shall be subject to the following limits:
New Landscapes. —_— - 2 . . :
. . [ s Fhe installation of new landscapes irrigated with potable water is
including Public Parks o . g -
= prohibited during Conservation Stage 5.
New landscapes mstalled prior 10 declaration of Conservation
Stage 5 may water two (2) day s a week to maintain adequate
growth on newly installed landscapes. for the remainder of the
initial five (3) week establishment period. Watering days for new
landscapes are Tuesday and Friday. Property owners must notify
the District of the address where new landseape is installed and
the date of installation
5 Golf Courses / Athletic | Landscape watering with potable water shall be subject to the
Fields following limits:

(3) All landscape out-of-play arcas such as may be found
around a clubhouse or entnvway shall follow the general
landscape irrigation restrictions,

(4) All in-play areas may be irrigated during the standard
watering hours (before 10:00 a.m. or alter 5:00 p.m.).

Course operators shall implement a thirty (30) percent reduction
in irrigation waler use.
5 Hotels, motels and bed Hotels. motels and B&B™s must limit linen/towel changes 10 once
and breakfasts every three (3) nights or for the entire stay, whichever is shorter.
except for heahlh and satetv.
5 Swimming pools. hot Filling new swimming pools and/or draining and refilling existing
tubs swimming pools is prohibited. All pools and tubs shall be
covered when not in use to reduce evaporation. Contact District
conservation stalf il an existing swimming pool must be repaired
and refilled during Conservation Stage 3.
5 Vehicle and Equipment | Non-commercial washing of vehicles and maobile equipment is
Washing prohibited. Only commercial facilities with water reeyeling
svslems may be used.
3 Industrial and Reduction of water use by any means is encouraged. The Board
commerctal ol Directors may establish mandatory use reduction targets. if
needed.
Compliance with mandatory demand reduction measures is
reguired for outdoor water uses including landscape irrigation.
swimming pools, and vehicle washing.
5 Heavy Construction The use of potable water for dust control shali be reduced to the
areatest extent possible, The District may establish mandators
construction water budgeets. il needed.

10 R




CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 053 1623

Appeals Procedure

I. Any person who wishes to appeal a customer classification or allotment shatl do so in writing
by using the forms provided by CCSD.

2. Appeals will be reviewed by the General Manager and stafll Site visits may be scheduled if
required.

3. A condition of granting an appeal shall be that all plumbing lixtures or irrigation systems be
replaced or modified for maximum water conservation.

4. Examples of appeals that may be considered are as follows:

a.  Substantial medical requirements.

b. Commercial/Industrial/Institutional  accounts  where any  additional  water  supply
reductions will result in unemployment or inappropriate hardship. after confirmation by
the CCSD statf that the account has instituted all applicable water efticiency
improvements.

5. In the event an appeal is requested for irrigation of trees or vegetation, CCSD stall may use
the services of a qualified consultant in determining the validity of the request. Costs tor such

consulting services shall be paid by the party or partics making the request.

6. The General Manager shall refer all appeals to the Water Conservation Commission. The
fater Conservation Commission may refer appeals to CCSD’s Board of Digectors.

7. It the General Manager and the applicant are unable to reach accord. then the appeal shall be
heard by the CCSD Board of Directors. who will make the final determination.

8. All appeals shall be reported monthly to the Board as a part of the Water Supply Report.

5.0 MANDATORY PROHIBITIONS ON WATER USE

California Water Code Section 10632(d). Additional, mandatory prohibitions against specific
water use practices during water shortages, including, but not limited to, prohibiting the use of
potable water for street cleaning. Section 10632(e) Consumption reduction methods in the
most restrictive stages, Each urban water supplier may use any type of consumption reduction
methods in its water shortage contingency analysis that would reduce water use, are
appropriute for its area, and have the ability to achieve a water use reduction consistent with
up to a 50 percent reduction in water supply.

- 90



CCSD Water Shortaze Contingency Plan Adopted 051625

The CCSD adopted a "Water Waste/Water Conservation” Ordinance (Ordinance No. 20) in April
of 1990. which prohibils water waste and promotes water conservation. Since the initial
adoption. revisions were adopted by the Board of Directors on April 14, 1992 and October 4.
1993. The ordinance has most recently been revised on and now appears as Chapter 3.36 of
CCSD Code. Scction 3.36.030. Mandatory Restrictions on Water Wasie. details the applicable
prohibitions of use.  These prohibitions are in foree at all times. Additional water use reduction
methods available to water users or CCSD (o adopt in order to comply with use reductions
during the more restrictive stages of water shortages (Stages 4 and 3) include, but are not fimited
to. the foltowing:

a) elimination of turf irrigation with potable supplies:
b} restriction of landscape watering to shrubs and trees by hand or drip irrigation only:

¢) elimination of vehicle washing except in car washes that have water recirculation
sy slems:

d) prohibition on [illing or topping off of swimming pools where damage to pumping
equipment will not result;

¢} elimination of water served in food service establishments unless requested;
) climination of the issuance of construction meters:
g) shut-ofl of dedicated landscape irngation meters; and
h) moratorium on provision of new supply meters.
It water use reductions called for in Stages 3-3 are not achieved. the CCSD may amend this

Water Shortage Contingency Plan 10 make any of the above available conscrvation tactics
mandatory,

6.0 PENALTIES OR CHARGES FOR EXCESSIVE USE

Cualifornia Water Code Section 10632(1) Penalties or charges for excessive use,
Section 3.36.050 of CCSD Code provides for a svstem of violations and notices. Violation of
provisions of this Water Shortage Contingeney Plan shall be enforced under Section 3.36.050 of

CCSD Code.

7.0 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE IMPACTS

California Water Code Section 10632(g) — An analysis of the impacts of each of the actions
and conditions described in subdivisions (a) to (f), inclusive, on the revenues and expenditures
of the urban water supplier, and proposed measures to overcome those impacts, such as the
development of reserves and rate adjustments.



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 05 1623

Enforcement of the Water Shortage Contingency Plan is assumed to be covered by enhanced
revenues from application of excess use charges and penalties. CCSD reserves may be usced
temporarily should revenues remain below expectations. CCSD’s rate structure is based upon
adopted rate ranges and allows for moditication of raies on short notice within those ranges.
CCSD retains the ability to modify rates to meet all legitimate CCSD needs.  Revenue impacts
from water sales losses are estimated as follows. based upon Tier 2 rates of $2.35/hef in.

Table 3: Potential Revenue Impacts of Implementation of WSCP

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Stage 4 Stage 3
Assumed Reduction 10 percent 20 percent 30 percenmt | 40 percent 30 percent
Water Sales Loss $ 45,406 $90.929 $136.399 $ 181.865 $227.332
Revenue Source:
Pumping savings at
$135/al $ 5.356 $10.713 $16.070 $21.427 $26.784
Net Revenue
Reduction $40.109 $80.219 $120.328 $160.438 3200547
Percent of Total
Annual Water System
Revenue 5% 11% 16% 21% 27%

* Table based on FY2018-2019 water sales, $1.160.973 for 770 acre-{vet

8.0 WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLAN IMPLEMENTATION

Culifornia Water Code Section 10632 (h)y A draft water shortuge contingency resolution or
ordinance.

CCSD Board of Directors adopt the Water Shortage Contingency Plan in Resolution No. 13-1.
which enables implementation of the Plan upon advice of stall based in part on the triggering
mechanisms discussed herein. The resolution is attached as Appendix A to this Plan.

9.0 WATER USE MONITORING PROCEDURES

California Water Code Section 10632 (i) A mechanism for determining actual reductions in
water use pursuant to the urban water shortage contingency plan.

Normal Monitoring Procedure:

In normal water supply conditions. production figures are recorded daily by CCSD O&M
personnel. Totals are reported monthly to the General Manager.  Production tigures are reported
in the Annual Report 1o the Drinking Water Program. which is submitted 10 the California
Department of Health Services each year.

Stage 1 and 2 Water Shortages

During a Stage | or 2 water shortage, daily production figures will be reported 1o the Senior
Operator and General Manager. The General Manager compares the weekly production to the



CCSD Water Shortage Contingency Plan Adopted 031623

target weekly production to verify that the reduction goal is being met. Monthly reports are
forwarded to the General Manager, the Water Conservation Commission and the CCSID Board of’
Directors. If reduction goals are not met. the General Manager may notify the Board ol Directors
so that corrective action can be taken.

Stage 3 and 4 Water Shortages

During a Stage 3 or 4 water shortage. the procedure listed above will be followed. with the
addition of a daily production report to the General Manager and weekly reports to the Water
Conservation Commission and Board of Directors. Special meetings may be called tor
administration ol the Water Shortage Contingency Plan.,

Stage S Water Shortage

During a Stage 3 shortage. production figures will be reported to the O&M Superintendent and
the General Manager daily. Reports will also be provided to CCSD’s Board of Dircetors. the
Monterey County Office of Emergency Services, and land use jurisdictions located within
CCSD’s service territory.



2023 CSDAANNUAL CONFERENCE & EXHIBITOR SHOWCASE - MONTEREY, CA

Attendee Registration Form

EEEA

Hotel Reservations mariott and Portoia Hotel & Spa Full Conference Registration Fees Iinclude:
CSDA room reservations within the CSDA Room Block for the Annual Conference and ~ * President’s Reception with the v Mix and Mingle in the Exhibit Hall
Exhibitor Showcase are available at the Marriott and Portola Hotel & Spa starting Exhibitors . ' SDRM‘\ Fuli Platad Breakfast
at the rate of $229 plus tax. The room reservation cut-aff is August 5, 2023; howaver, » Keynate Sessions ) * Legisiative Update Lunchean
space is limited and may seli out befora this date. Informaticn regarding hotel ' [é::.l;r.utenlal Breakfast with the " f‘_lrl Bma‘;“;" ?:“5,_";"5 )
reservations and links to book in the CSDA room block will ba emailed to the attendes rartars - ! as_te ol (e &ty “hecepiion
R o s N * Lunch with the Exhibitors » Closing Breakfast
only [not the individual registering the attendee) within 24 hours of registration
Three Ways to Register
ONLINE by visiting the CSDA Annual @ FAX your registration farm to 916-520-2465. MAIL to CSDA, 1112 | Street, Suite 200, Sacramento, CA 35814
Conferance wabsite at conferance.csda.net. {All faxed forms must includa payment} {pleasa include registration form along with payment. Chack should ba

made payable te: Calilorniz Special Districts Association).

Name: Title:

District:

Address:

City: State Zip
Phone: Fax:

Email: Website

Spacial Needs linclude dietaryl:

Emergency Contact:

Conference Repgistratian Feas Early Bird (on/balore August 5, 2023) | Regular {after August 5, 2023) 'SUBTOTAL
O £50A Member - Fult Conference ("ﬂq 29-30 TWsda.ﬁ $675.00 $750.00

O Non-member - Full Conference e ’ $1,0:0.00 51,125.60

[ Guest of s Member - Full Conference {Cannot be from a district/company) [ Vegetarian | $250.00 542500

2 Guest of a Non-membar - Full Conferance {Cannot be from a district/company) [J Vegetarian | §525.00 $635.00

O CSDA Metnber - Qne-day registration 3 Tuesday [ Wednesday £ Thursday §375.00 each day $400.00 each day

[ Non-member - One-day registration [ Tuesday 3 Wednesday ([ Thursday § 56000 sach day $ 600.00 each day

Separate Ragistration Feas Member Non-member SUBTOTAL
[0 Pre-Conference Warkshop: SDLA Module 1° Governance Foundations - Aug. 28 5250.00 531500

3 Pre-Conference Warkshop: S, You Want to Be a Genoral Manager? - Aug. 28 § 100.00 CSDA Member/Non-member

3 SDLF Scramble for Scholarships Golf Tournament - Aug. 28 5 110.00 {includes lunch)

e e

O I::::S:L?:;i:::;:’rDel;li:rtIJ:llt-arAe:;ez';nut; Ekhorn Skough Kayak Tour and § 90.00 CSDA Membar/Nan-member

O3 “Tasts of the City” Reception {Guasts anlyl - Aug. 30 $80.00 | $12000

O Karaoke After Party - Aug. 30 § 25.00 CSDA Member/Non-member
-_‘_I:HEI-IDH" R L 1 __:-'-'_{ii =l e P e = B - |=m - & T WLE....'-"

Paymaent Information

Paymenttype: [ Check [ visa O MastesCard 0O AMEX [ Discover

Account nama Account Number:

Expiration date: CVC: Authorized Signatura:

Cancellations/Substitution Policy: Canceilaticns must be in wiiting and received by CSDA no later than Saturday, August 5, 2023, All cance/lations received by this date will be refunded less a $75 processing
fee There wil be o refunds for cancellations made after August 5, 2023, Substitutons are acceptable and must be dene in writing no |3l than August 18, 2023 81 500 p m. Please submil any cancellation notice or
substrution request 1 jenndters@csda net or fax 10 316-326-2465

Consent to Use Photographic Images: flegistraton and attengance at, or participation i, CSDA meeting and other activities constitul an agreement by the registrant to CSDA's use and distribution {both now and in
the fulwre) of the registrant or attendee’s image or voice in photogeaphs. videgtapes, electronic eeproductions, and audiotapes of such everts and activities.

Anti-Discrimination and H nt Policy: CSDA 15 dedicated to a harassment-free event expenence for everyone Dur Anti- Discrmunation and Harassment Policy can be found under “CSDA Transparenc}" at 9 ‘-‘1
www.csta nat/about-csdafwho-we-are




